MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
- COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, January 13, 2004
10:00 a.m.

Council Chambers, Municipal District of Mackenzie Office
Fort Vermilion, Alberta

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER: 1. a) Call to Order

AGENDA: 2. a) Adoption of Agenda

ADOPTION OF

THE PREVIOUS _

MINUTES: 3. a) Minutes of the December 9, 2003 Page 7

Regular Council Meeting

BUSINESS ARISING
OUT OF THE
MINUTES: 4. a)

DELEGATIONS: b. a)

PUBLIC
HEARINGS: 6. a)
COUNCIL
COMMITTEE AND
CAO REPORTS: 7. a) Council Committee Reports
b) CAO Report Page 23
GENERAL
REPORTS: 8. a) Action List Page 25

b) Page



MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23

REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA
January 13, 2004
PAGE 2

AGRICULTURAL
SERVICES: 9. a)
OPERATIONAL
SERVICES: 10. &)
b)
c)
d)
e)

PLANNING, EMERGENCY,
AND ENFORCEMENT
SERVICES: 11.  a)

b)

c)

d)-

e)

CORPORATE
SERVICES: 12.  a)

Bylaw 371/03 — Water Rationing

BF 78212 — Heliport Road Bridge

Urban Water and Sewer
Infrastructure Installation

Policy DEV001 —
Urban Development Standards

Regional Hazardous Materials Unit

Establishment of Gravel Crushing Reserve
Water/Sewer rates Calculation Review
Edmonton City Centre Airport
Assessment Review Board

Water Front Cot’tage Development Proposal

Page

Page 29
Page 39
Page
Page

Page

Page 41

Page 43

Page 49
Page
Page

Page

Page 57
Page 61
Page 103
Page 107

Page 109



MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA
January 13, 2004

PAGE 3

f) Joint Meeting of Northern Alberta Page 113
Mayor's Caucus and Reeves

a) Fall 2003 Convention Evaluation Page 119
h) MD Brochure Page 129
); Northern Exposure Tourism Conference Page 147
i) Winterfest 2004 Page 153
k) Sunday Hunting Page 161

IN CAMERA

SESSION: 13. a) Collective Bargaining

b) Cost of Living Increases

NEXT MEETING

DATE: 14. a) Regular Council Meeting
6:00 p.m.
Tuesday, January 27, 2004
Council Chambers, Fort Vermilion

ADJOURNMENT: 15. a) Adjournment







PRESENT:

ABSENT:

ALSO PRESENT:

CALL TO ORDER:

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, December 9, 2003
10:00 a.m.

Council Chambers, Municipal District of Mackenzie Office
Fort Vermilion, Alberta

Bill Neufeld Reeve

Betty Bateman Councillor

John W. Driedger Councillor

Pat Kulscar Councillor

Greg Newman Councillor

Joe Peters Councillor

Willie Wieler Councillor {arrived 10:10 a.m.)
Walter Sarapuk Deputy Reeve

Odell Flett Councillor (arrived 10:04 a.m.)
Wayne Thiessen Councillor (arrived at 12:48 p.m.)

Harvey Prockiw Chief Administrative Officer

Barb Spurgeon Executive Assistant

Bill Landiuk Director of Corporate Services

Michel Savard Director of Operational Services

Grant Smith Agricultural Fieldman

Paul Driedger Director of Planning and Emergency Services

Minutes of the regular Council meeting for the Municipal District of
Mackenzie No. 23 held on Tuesday, December 9, 2003 in the
Council Chambers of the Municipal District of Mackenzie office, Fort
Vermilion, Alberta.

1. a) Call to Order

Reeve Neufeld called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.



MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

December 8, 2003

Page 2 of 13

AGENDA: 2, a) Adoption of Agenda

MOTION 03-601

ADOPTION OF
THE PREVIOUS
MINUTES:

MOTION 03-602

MOTION 03-603

MOTION 03-604

MOVED by Councillor Driedger

That the agenda be adopted as amended by adding:
5.b) Fort Vermilion Garbage Petition

10. e) Fort Vermilion Residential Garbage Pickup Bylaw
10. f) Heliport Road Bridge Tender Approval — BF78212
5.¢) Personnel - In camera

CARRIED

GCouncilior Flett entered the meeting at 10:04 a.m.

3. a) Minutes of the November 25, 2003
Regular Council Meeting

MOVED by Councillor Kulscar

That the minutes of the November 25, 2003 Regular Council meeting
be adopted as presented.

CARRIED

3. b} Minutes of the November 27, 2003
Special Council (Budget) Meeting

MOVED by Councillor Kulscar

That the minutes of the November 27, 2003 Special Council meeting
be adopted as presented.

CARRIED

3. c} Minutes of the December 2, 2003
Special Council {Budget) Meeting

MOVED by Councillor Kulscar

That the minutes of the December 2, 2003 Special Council meeting
be adopted as amended.

CARRIED



MUNICIPAL DISTRICT CF MACKENZIE NO. 23
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

December 9, 2003
Page 3 of 13

MOTION 03-605

3. d) Minutes of the December 3, 2003
Special Council (Budget) Meeting

MOVED by Councillor Bateman

That the minutes of the December 3, 2003 Special Council meeting
be adopted as presented.

CARRIED

BUSINESS ARISING

OUT OF THE
MINUTES:

DELEGATIONS:

4, a)

There were no items under this heading.

5. a) Mighty Peace Tourist Association Update

Reeve Neufeld welcomed Bonnie Wearden at 10:04 a.m.

Ms. Wearden provided Council with an update on current Mighty
Peace Tourist Association initiatives.

Councillor Wieler entered the meeting at 10:10 a.m.

Reeve Neufeld thanked Ms. Wearden, who left the meeting at 10:20
a.m.

Reeve Neufeld recessed the meeting at 10:21 a.m.

Reeve Neufeld reconvened the meeting at 10:28 a.m.

5. b} Fort Vermilion Garbage Petition

Reeve Neufeld welcomed Andy Flooren at 10:29 a.m.

Mr. Flooren brought forward a petition regarding residential garbage
pickup that was circulated in the community.

Reeve Neufeld thanked Mr. Flooren, who left the meeting at 10:43
a.m.



MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

December 9, 2003

Page 4 0f 13

Motion 03-606 MOVED by Councillor Bateman
That consideration be given to move in camera to discuss issues
under the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy, Alberta
Regulation 200/95. (10:44 a.m.)
CARRIED

Motion 03-607 MOVED by Councillor Wieler
That Council come out of camera. (10:57 a.m.).
CARRIED

Reeve Neufeld recessed the meeting at 10:57 a.m.

Reeve Neufeld reconvened the meeting at 11:03 a.m.

Councillor Driedger left the meeting at 11:03 a.m.

PUBLIC
HEARINGS: 6. a)
There were no items under this heading.
COUNCIL
COMMITTEE AND
CAO REPORTS: 7. a) ouncil Committee Reports

Councillors provided verbal reports on meetings attended since
previous reporting.

Deputy Reeve Sarapuk reported on Veterinary Services
Incorporated, Northern Lights Foresiry Education Society.
Councillor Peters reported no meetings.

Councillor Wieler reported no meetings.

Councillor Bateman reported no meetings.

Councillor Flett reported no meetings.

Councillor Driedger entered the meeting af 11:07 a.m.

Councillor Newman reported on Fort Vermilion Recreation Board.
Councillor Kuiscar reported on Northwest Region Fairview College
Advisory Committee, and Reeves, Mayors and CAO’s meeting.
Reeve Neufeld reported on the workshop on regional airports.
Councillor Driedger reported on Mackenzie Housing Management
Board.



MUNICIPAL RISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NQ. 23
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

December 8, 2003

Page 5of 13

MOTION 03-608 MOVED by Councillor Wieler

That the Council Committee verbal reports be received as
information.

CARRIED

7. b) CAQ Report
MOTION 03-609 MOVED by Councillor Bateman

That the written report submitted by the Chief Administrative Officer
be accepted as presented.

CARRIED

GENERAL
REPORTS: 8. a) Action List on Council Motions

MOTION 03-610 MOVED by Councillor Peters
That the Action List be accepted for information.

CARRIED

8. h} 2004 Operating and Capital Budget

MOTION 03-611 MOVED by Councillor Kulscar
Requires 2/3 Majority
That Access to SW35-107-13-5 be deleted from the 2004 budget; and

That La Crete Seniors Inn Sidewalk Project be changed from
$16,050.00 to $7000.00.

CARRIED
MOTION 03-612 MOVED by Councillor Bateman
Requires 2/3 Majority

That the 2004 Operating and Capital Budget be adopted as presented.

CARRIED



MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

December 9, 2003

Page 6 of 13

MOTION 03-613  MOVED by Councillor Newman

That utility rates be placed on the January 13, 2004 agenda.

CARRIED
AGRICULTURAL
SERVICES: 9. a)
OPERATIONAL
SERVICES: 10. a) Bylaw 371/03 — Water Rationing

Councillor Bateman requested a recorded vote for Motion 03-614.

MOTION 03-614 MOVED by Councillor Wieler
Bylaw 371/03

First Reading That first reading be given to Bylaw 371/03 being a bylaw respecting
the Rationing of Water.

CARRIED

In favor: Deputy Reeve Sarapuk, Councillor Peters, Councillor
Driedger, Councillor Wieler, Councillor Flett, Councillor Newman,
Councillor Kulscar

Opposed: Reeve Neufeld, Councillor Bateman

MOTION 03-615 MOVED by Councillor Bateman
Bylaw 371/03

Second Reading That second reading be given to Bylaw 371/03 being a bylaw
respecting the Rationing of Water.

CARRIED
Councilior Bateman requested a recorded vote on Motion 03-616

MOTION 03-616 MOVED by Deputy Reeve Sarapuk

Requires Unanimous
Consent That consideration be given to go to third reading for Bylaw 371/03
being a bylaw Respecting the Rationing of Water.

DEFEATED

In favor; Deputy Reeve Sarapuk,Councillor Peters, Councilior
Driedger, Councillor Wieler, Councillor Flett, Councillor Newman,
Councillor Kulscar, Reeve Neufeld

Opposed: Councillor Bateman

Reeve Neufeld recessed the meeting at 12:05 p.m.



MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

December 9, 2003
Page 7 of 13

MOTION 03-617
Bylaw 402/03

First Reading

MOTION 03-618
Bylaw 402/03

Second Reading

MOTION 03-619
Requires Unanimous
Consent

MOTION 03-620
Bylaw 402/03
Third Reading

MOTION 03-621

MOTION 03-622

Reeve Neufeld reconvened the meeting at 12:47 p.m.

10. b)  Bylaw 402/03 — Water and Sewer System

MOVED by Councillor Wieler

That first reading be given to Bylaw 402/03 being a bylaw for water
and sewer system and other charges for the MD of Mackenzie.

CARRIED

MOVED by Counciilor Peters

That second reading be given to Bylaw 402/03 being a bylaw for
water and sewer system and other charges for the MD of Mackenzie.

CARRIED

MOVED by Councillor Kulscar

That consideration be given to go to third reading for Bylaw 402/03.
CARRIED

MOVED by Councillor Thiessen

That third reading be given to Bylaw 402/03 being a bylaw for water
and sewer system and other charges for the MD of Mackenzie.

CARRIED

10. ¢}  Policy PW-014

Sale of MD Gravel for Personal Use

MOVED by Councillor Bateman

That Policy PW014 — Sale of MD Gravel for Personal Use be
adopted as amended.

CARRIED
MOVED by Councillor Wieler
That gravel from the Tompkins grave! pit be sold for $18.31/m°.

CARRIED



MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

December 9, 2003
Page 8 of 13

MOTION 03-623

MOTION 03-624

MOTION 03-625

10. d) Intersection of Highway 697
and Highway 88 Connector

MOVED by Councillor Wieler

That MD support an intersection on the Highway 697 and Highway
88 Connector with the following:

¢ North-bound right-turn preferred alternative is A2.

s Lighting requested for each of the 4 intersections

+ Road widening and accelerating lane west of the jug handle
intersection

+ All southbound traffic accessing the Highway 88 connector to
use the jug handle.

CARRIED

10. e) Fort Vermilion Residential
Garbage Pickup Bylaw

MOVED by Councillor Newman

That the petition received from a local delegation, and the Request
for Decision for residential garbage pick up, be accepted for
information.

CARRIED

10. ) Heliport Road Bridge Tender Approval — BF78212

MOVED by Councillor Kulscar

That the replacement of BF78212 contract be awarded to the lowest
eligible tender.

CARRIED



MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

December g, 2003
Page 9 of 13

PLANNING, EMERGENCY,
AND ENFORCEMENT

SERVICES:

MOTION 03-626
Bylaw 381/03

First reading

MOTION 03-627
Bylaw 385/03
First reading

MOTION 03-628
Bylaw 399/03
First Reading

MOTION 03-629
Bylaw 399/03
Second Reading

11. a) Bylaw 381/03 — Land Use Bylaw Amendment
NW 5-106-15-W5M
From Agricultural District “A1” to

Rural Country Residential District “RC”

MOVED by Councillor Thiessen

That first reading be given to Bylaw 381/03, being a Land Use Bylaw
Amendment to rezone NW 5-106-15-W5M From Agricultural District
“A1” to Rural Country Residential District “RC”

CARRIED

1. b) Bylaw 385/03 — Land Use Bylaw Amendment
to rezone from Agricultural to Country Residential

NE 14-105-15-W5M

MOVED by Councillor Bateman

That first reading be given to Bylaw 381/03, being a Land Use Bylaw
Amendment to rezone part of NE 14-105-15-W5M From Agricultural
District “A1” to Rural Country Residential District “RC”

CARRIED

11. c) Bylaw 399/03 — To Amend Bylaw 332/02

100 A Street North Road Closure

MOVED by Councillor Kulscar
That first reading be given to Bylaw 399/03 being a bylaw amending

the road description in Bylaw 332/02 for the closure of 100 A Street
North, in La Crete.

CARRIED

MOVED by Councillor Peters

That second reading be given to Bylaw 399/03 being a bylaw
amending the road description in Bylaw 332/02 for the closure of 100
A Street North, in La Crete.

CARRIED



MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

December 9, 2003
Page 10 of 13

MOTION 03-630

Requires Unanimous
Consent

MOTION 03-631
Bylaw 398/03
Third Reading

MOTION 03-632
Bylaw 400/03

First Reading

MOTION 03-633
Bylaw 404/03

First Reading

MOVED by Councillor Newman
That consideration be given to go to third reading for Bylaw 399/03

being a bylaw amending the road description in Bylaw 332/02 for the
closure of 100 A Street North, in La Crete.

CARRIED

MOVED by Councillor Thiessen

That third reading be given to Bylaw 399/03 being a bylaw amending
the road description in Bylaw 332/02 for the closure of 100 A Street
North, in La Crete.

CARRIED

11. d) Bylaw 400/03 — Land Use Bylaw Amendment

To Add Zonings and Amend Conditions

MOVED by Councillor Thiessen

That first reading be given to Bylaw 400/03 being a Land Use Bylaw
Amendment to add zonings for Rural Country Residential District 1
“RC1”, Rural Country Residential District 2 “RC2”, Rural country
Residential District 3 “RC3".

CARRIED

11. d) Bylaw 404/03 — Land Use Bylaw Amendment

To Add Zonings and Amend Conditions

MOVED by Councillor Wieler

That first reading be given to Bylaw 404/03 being a Land Use Bylaw
Amendment to amend the Hamlet Residential District 1A “HR1A” and
add a zoning Hamlet Residential District 1B “HR1B".

CARRIED



MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

December 9, 2003
Page 11 of 13

MOTION 03-634
Bylaw 405/03
First Reading

MOTION 03-635
Bylaw 401/03

First Reading

MOTION 03-636

MOTION 03- 637

11. d) Bylaw 405/03 — Land Use Bylaw Amendment

To Add Zonings and Amend Conditions

MOVED by Councillor Bateman

That first reading be given o Bylaw 405/03 being a Land Use Bylaw
Amendment to amend the Rural Industrial District 1 “RM1”.

CARRIED

11. e)  Bylaw 401/03 —Road Closure of a Portion of 105"

Street La Crete Municipal Nursing Association

MOVED by Councillor Bateman

That first reading be given to Bylaw 401/03 being a Road Closure
bylaw fo close the portion of 105" Street in La Crete.

DEFEATED

MOVED by Councillor Kulscar

That Administration enter info dialogue with La Crete Municipal
Nursing Association in an effort to resolve the issues raised by La
Crete Municipal Nursing association surrounding the 105" Street
between the Heimstaed Lodge and the Altenheim without closing
105" Street.

CARRIED

1. f) La Crete Senior’s Inn Society

Sidewalk Replacement

This item was dealt with under item 8 b) 2004 Operating and Capital
Budget.

11. g) Enforcement Services — Statistics Report

MOVED by Councillor Thiessen

That the Enforcement Services Statistics Report be received as
information.

CARRIED



MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

December 9, 2003
Page 12 of 13

MOTION 03-638

MOTION 03-639

CORPORATE
SERVICES:

MOTION 03-640

MOTION 03-641

MOTION 03-642
Requires 2/3 Majority

11. h) Elected Officials Course-

January 31, 2004 Grande Prairie

MOVED by Councillor Peters

That the information received on the Municipal Elected Officials
course be received as information.

CARRIED
1. i) Director’s Report
MOVED by Councillor Bateman

That the written report submitted by the Director of Planning,
Emergency, and Enforcement Services be accepted as presented.

CARRIED

12. a) Policy ADM033 -
Personal Vehicle Allowance Rate Structure

MOVED by Councillor Wieler

That Policy ADM033 — Personal Vehicle Allowance Rate Structure be
accepted for information.

CARRIED
MOVED by Councillor Newman

That Administration review the financial rate structure on Policy
ADMO033 — Personal Vehicle Allowance Rate Structure.

CARRIED

12. b) Three Year Audit Fee Contract

MOVED by Councillor Kulscar

That the MD of Mackenzie enters into a three year contract with Ernst
& Young to provide for the general audit services for the fiscal years
2003, 2004, and 2005.

CARRIED



MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

December 9, 2003

Page 13 of 13

Reeve Neufeld recessed the meeting at 2:10 p.m.
Reeve Neufeld reconvened the meeting at 2:20 p.m.

12. ¢} Federation of Canadian Municipalities
Conference and Municipal Expo

MOTION 03-643 MOVED by Councillor Wieler

That all Counciliors be authorized to attend the FCM Annual
Convention and Municipal Expo in Edmonton.

CARRIED

12. d) Potential Land Sale Mechanism

MOTION 03-644 MOVED by Councillor Wieler

That Agricultural Land Task Force arrange a meeting with the
Minister Mike Cardinal.

CARRIED
DATE OF NEXT
MEETING: 14. a) Regular Council Meeting
Tuesday, January 13, 2004
10:00 a.m.

MD Council Chambers — Fort Vermilion

ADJOURNMENT: 15. a) Adjournment

MOTION 03- 645 MOVED by Councillor Thiessen
That the Regular Council meeting be adjourned (2:30 p.m.)
CARRIED

These minutes were adopted this 13™ day of, January 2004.

Bill Neufeld, Reeve Barbara Spurgeon,
Executive Assistant



1b)

Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
CAO Report
January 8, 2004

General

Now that the festive season is over, we will continue with the numerous projects
and issues underway. | plan to be off on a vacation from January 26 to February
10.

Ag Land Task Force

We are attempting to set up a meeting with Minister Mike Cardinal. In addition,
we are meeting next week with Footner Forest products as well as Public Lands
and Forestry to discuss the land swap.

AAMD&C Aboriginal Advisory Committee

This committee has been reactivated and Reeve Bill and | will be attending a
meeting in Edmonton January 22 and will bring council up to speed when we
return.

L.C. Chamber of Commerce/ F.V. Board of Trade
Senior management and myself will be attending both meetings to discuss the
adopted budget and any other items on Tuesday, January 13.

MD Brochure
Cora Klassen was hired over the Christmas season to tune up the draft brochure.
You will be receiving a copy and barring any changes, it will be going to print.

Collective Agreement Negotiations

Bill Landiuk, the Finance Committee and myself have met and negotiated over
the last two days and come up with a recommended three-year agreement which
will be on the agenda.

Staff Issues

We currently have a grievance in process as well as a Human Rights
Commission complaint. | don't expect any problems in dealing with either of
these two and if desired, | can discuss these in greater detail with Council in-
camera.

Respectfully Submitted,
Harvey Prockiw, CAO






M.D. of Mackenzie

Action List

Council Meeting Motions Requiring Action

Motion |
Date Action Required Status
Name
02-722 | That the Highway 58 East agreement be Waiting for comments from LRRCN.
Oct8 |forwarded to Little Red River Cree Nation with | LRRCN recently hired a new Director for
Mike the schedules to be negotiated between MD the Public Works & Capital Department
and Little Red River Cree Nation and he has requested some additional
administration. information.
02-816 | That the Municipal District of Mackenzie enter | FVSD was sent a copy of our license
Nov 5 |into a license agreement with the Fort agreement for review. FVSD has
Paul Vermilion School Division for the use of the requested to enter into a license
road right-of-way. agreement.
02-940 | That administration be authorized to pursue a | We have a lease for Buffalo Head Tower
Dec 17 |20 year lease for the Buffalo Head Tower, and a 5-year lease for a portion of
Bill Machesis Lake and Tompkins Landing Machesis Lake. Site review and legal
campground/recreational areas. plan of the Tompkins Landing site
completed. We are pursuing lease.
03-128 | That Municipal District of Mackenzie enter into | Will be dealt with by the Dene Tha First
Feb 25 |an agreement with the Dene Tha First Nation Nation by November 2003. Now they
Paul to maintain the existing road adjacent to the are stating they will not deal with it till the
west boundary of sections 30 and 31-109-18- new year.
W5M for the unrestricted use of it.
03-161 | That the water rationing bylaw be revised to 1%' and 2" Readings passed at Dec 9
Mar 11 |include the sale of bulk water. meeting. 3™ Reading is being requested
Mike at January 13, 2004 meeting.
July 8 | Bring to Council a report on the maintenance Maintenance program for five water
Mike program and water treatment processes for points to be established and presented
rural water points. to Council in January 2004.
03-469 |Bring to Council updated information on MD Will be completed in conjunction with the
Aug 26 | gravel pits pit surveys scheduled in January 2004.
Mike
Oct 15 | Revise Policy ADM040 Service Levels of MD Bring back to Council in February.
Mike Campgrounds and Playgrounds to reflect
playground equipment replacement.
Oct. 28 | That meetings be set up with Council and each | Band Councils have been contacted. No
Barb Band. response yet
03-536 | That a letter be sent to the Min. of Comm. Dev. | Complete
Nov 25 | Re: non-support of the Canadian Parks and
Barb Wilderness Society initiative.




03-556
Nov 25
Paul

That the committee who met with K-Division
also meet with Staff Sergeants and draft a
formal response to the meeting.

Minutes from original division have been
received

03-557
Nov 25

That Northern Light Health region be asked to
provide primary care services for Zama or

Letter sent. No response yet.

Barb reimburse MD,
03-558 | That a letter be sent to Edmonton Mayor Bill Complete.
Nov 25 | Smith in support of continued operations of the
Barb City Center Airport.
03-552 | That a special meeting be set up with the Need to establish dates when Council is
Nov 25 | Town of High Level to discuss the Inter- available and coordinate it with the Town
Paul Municipal Development Plan and a joint public | Council.
hearing be scheduled
03-623 | That the MD support an intersection on the Letter mailed on December 17, 2003.
Dec 9 |Highway 88 and 697 Connector as per Council
Mike direction.
03-636 | That Administration enter into discussions with
Dec9 |LCMNA to resolve issue around the 105 Street
Paul between the Heimstaed Lodge and the
Altenheim
03-641 | That Administration review the Personal The rates are currently being
Dec 9 |Vehicle Allowance Rates as per policy ADM- recalculated. Results should be ready
Mike 033 for Council by February 11, 2004,
03-644 | That the Ag. Land Task Force arrange a In progress.
Dec 9 |meeting with Minister Cardinal.

Harvey







¢ That some of the definitions be removed as they are self explanatory.

COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION (by originator):

That third reading be given to Bylaw 371/03.

Author: S. Rozee Review: Department of Operational Services C.A.O.




BYLAW NO. 202/04 874/03

BEING ABYLAW OF THE
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA

A BYLAW RESPECTING THE RATIONING OF WATER

WHEREAS pursuant to the provisions of the Municipal Government Act, Council
may pass bylaws for municipal purposes relating to the heaith and welfare of
people and the protection of people and property; services provided by or on
behalf of the Municipality; and public utilities, and

WHEREAS the Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 Council has constructed
and operates a water supply system, and

WHEREAS Council for the Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 deems it
advisable and necessary to make provisions for the restriction of the use of water
and for the protection of the supply of water,

NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to the authority conferred upon it by the Municipal
Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, c.M-28, as amended, or as repealed and replaced
from time to time, the Council of the Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 duly
assembied, enacts as follows:

SHORT TITLE

1. This bylaw may be cited as the “Water Rationing Bylaw”

DEFINITIONS
2. In this bylaw, unless the context otherwise requires,
a) “Bylaw” includes all Schedules appended hereto.
b) “Bylaw Enforcement Officer” means a Person appointed as a

Bylaw Enforcement Officer by Council to do any act or perform any
duties under this Bylaw, and includes a member of the Royal
Canadian Mounted Police and, when authorized, a special
constable. .



Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
BYLAW NO. 371/03

Papge 2

c) “Bulk Water Fill Station” means

station Whet! itv.onprvatelindus

operated-by the-municipality in the Hamlets of Fort Vermilion, La .

Crete, and Zama.;

any

..

d) “Emergency Services” means fire departments, hospital and
ambulance services.

f) «| evel of Restriction” means a stage of response to a water
supply shortage as set out in Schedule A",

k) «“Violation Ticket” means a summons violation ticket issued
pursuant to Part 2 of the Provincial Offences Procedure Act, R.S.A.
2000, c.P-34, as amended, or repealed and rep[laced from time to
time, and the regulations thereunder.



Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
BYLAW NO. 371/03

Page 3

RESTRICTING WATER SUPPLY

Where the Chief Administrative Officer (CAO) or designate determines it
necessary to impose restrictions on the amount of water used in one or all
the hamlets within the municipality, the CAO may declare a state of water
shortage.

When the CAO has deciared a state of water shortage pursuant to Section
3 of this Bylaw:

(a) The CAO may impose a Level of Restriction as set out in Schedule
“A" of this Bylaw.

(b)  Notwithstanding Section 4(a), the CAO shall not be required to
impose levels of restriction in successive stages, but may proceed
to impose any level of restriction the CAO has determined is
warranted due to the prevailing condition of the water supply.

(c)  Where the CAO determines it necessary to do so, the CAO may
impose different levels of restrictions for each hamlet within the
municipality.

NOTICE

When a level of restriction has been imposed pursuant to this bylaw, the

municipality shall advertise and provide notice of the level of restriction in

effect by any one or more of the following means:

(@)  Notification in monthly accounts provided for water services; or

(b)  Notification of account holders by separate mailing; or

(¢}  Advertisement in a newspaper of general circulation in the area of
the municipality to which the restrictions apply; or

(d)  Announcement via local radio station, and or local community
television channel.

as well as by any other method as may be required in Schedule “A” for the
level of restriction in place.



Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
BYLAW NO. 371/03

Page 4

EXCEPTIONS

Unless otherwise expressly ordered by resolution of Council, the
provisions of Sections 3 and 4 of this bylaw shall not apply to emergency
services, extended care facilities, schools, disabled care facilities, group-
homes, and where a reduction in the supply of water may have an
adverse impact on public health and safety.

(a)

(b)

CONTRAVENTION

Where the CAO, Bylaw Enforcement Officer, or other Person
charged with the enforcement of this Bylaw, has reasonable
grounds to believe a contravention of this Bylaw has occurred or is
oceurring, the CAQ, Bylaw Enforcement Officer, or other Person
charged with the enforcement of the Bylaw, may issue a Violation
Ticket to the Person violating the Bylaw, pursuant to Part 3 of the
Provincial Offences Procedure Act, R.S.A. 2000, c.P-34, as
amended, or repealed and replaced from time to time, and the
Regulations thereunder.

A Violation Ticket issued pursuant to this section shall be served by
the following means:

(i) Inthe case of a defendant who is an individual, by delivering it
personally to the defendant or, when the defendant cannot be
conveniently found, by leaving it for the defendant at his
residence with a person on the premises who appears to be at
least eighteen (18) years of age;

(i) In the case of a defendant that is a corporation other than a
Municipality or Metis Settlement,

(1) by sending it single-registered mail to the registered
office of the corporation, or

(2) by delivering it personally to the manager, secretary
or other executive officer of the corporation or a
person apparently in charge of a branch office of the
corporation at an address held by the corporation to
be its address;

(3) or by any other means required by the Provincial
Offences Procedure Act.



Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
BYLAW NO. 371/03
Page 5

INJUNCTION

8. Where a contravention of this bylaw is of a continuing nature, in addition to
the issuance of a Violation Ticket, the municipality may seek an Order of
Court granting an injunction or any order necessary to enforce’
compliance, and shall be entitled to add the cost of such action to the
utility bill for the person contravening this bylaw.

PENALTIES

9. Any Person who contravenes any provision of this bylaw is guilty of an
offence and is liable on summary conviction to a fine as set out in
Schedule “B”.

Sy )

First reading given on the day of , 2003.

Bill Neufeld, Reeve Barbara Spurgeon,
Executive Assistant

Second Reading given on the dayof __ , 2003.

Bill Neufeld, Reeve Barbara Spurgeon,
Executive Assistant

Third Reading and Assent given on the day of , 2003.

Bill Neufeld, Reeve Barbara Spurgeon,
Executive Assistant



Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
BYLAW NO. 371/03
Page 6

BYLAW NO. 371/03

WATER RATIONING BYLAW

SCHEDULE “A”

LEVEL OF RESTRICTIONS

STAGE 1

When treatment plant hours of operation exceed twenty (20) hours per day, for
four (4) consecutive days, the CAO may order the imposition of the following:

Information

Public Awareness Campaign: may include advisory of potential water shortage
by local radio broadcast and/or news release, and education programs
regarding water conservation measures.

Restrictions

None

STAGE 2
Information
When water treatment plant hours of operation exceed twenty-two (22) hours per
day for two (2) consecutive days, the CAO may order the imposition of one or

more of the following:

Restrictions

1. Discontinue sale of bulk treated and raw water, with the exception of water
for domestic use, at treated water fill stations in the affected hamlet.

3. Distribution system pressure to be reduced by 10 psi.



Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
BYLAW NO. 371/03
Page 7

4, Outs:demwager u;-;e shall be restnctgd to the hours of 4:00-a-m-te-8:00
Bi0Em 1001004 m: 7:00/pim. to 11:00 p.m., and restricted

to the followm N

STAGE 3
When the CAO determines the available supply of water is such that customer
demand has exceeded the capability of the treatment plant recovery process, the
CAO may order the imposition of the following:

Information

Notice in accordance with this bylaw, and posted notices at closed fill stations
informing customers of nearest available water source.

Restrictions
1. Closure of all bulk water fill stations, for both the treated and raw water.

2. Reduction of distribution system pressure by 20 psi. from originai pressure




Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
BYLAW NO. 371/03

Page 8
BYLAW NO. 371/03
WATER RATIONING BYLAW
SCHEDULE “B”
SCHEDULE OF FINES
Stage 2 Water used for anything other 1% offence
than domestic use. $250.00
2" offence
$500.00
3" and subsequent
$1,500.00
Stage 2 Outside water used. outside of 1%t offence
this bylaw schedule. $250.00
2" offence
$500.00
3" and subsequent
$1,500.00
Stage 3 Outside water used when 1%t offence
complete water ban is in $5600.00
effect. 2" offence
$1,000.00

3™ and subsequent
$2,000.00






The original approved budget was:

MD $60,000
Alberta Transportation 540,000
Total 600,000

At the July 8 Council meeting, Council approved that the MD front end all costs if
approved by AT. The class ‘C’ estimate presented at that time was:

MD $94 582
Alberta Transportation 489,230
Total 583,812

This was approved with the unbudgeted expenditures to be funded from the General
Operating Reserve. Though the total project cost is significantly greater than the class
'C’ estimate, the MD’s portion has decreased slightly.

RECOMMENDED ACTION (by originator):

That the update regarding BF78212 (Heliport Road bridge) be accepted as information.

Author: B. Wiebe  Review: Operational Services C.A.QO.







COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:

RECOMMENDED ACTION (by originator):

That the installation of urban water and sewer infrastructure issue be referred to the
Development Task Force for recommendations.

Review: Dept. C.A.O.










3 Costs exceeding $100,000 accumulated throughout the year will be funded through
debentures at year-end and amortized over a 10 year period, provided that the M.D.

has the ability to borrow these funds pursuant to the MGA.

4 This policy is for new subdivisions only and will not be retroactive to any previous
subdivisions.

Urban Development Standards

The following chart indicates the minimum standards on new development.

Curb [Sidewalk| Under | St. Lights | St. Lights | Paved | Gravel | Storm
ZONING |& Gutter Ground | (under grd | (OH pwr) | Roads | Road Sewer
Power pWI)
MHP N v MD
MHS V* v* Y v MD
HCR y N MD
Al " " v v v MD
other
Residential
Commercial |  * V* v v N MD
Industrial v N MD
Definitions

(V) — means the requirement.

(*) — means Local Improvement.

(MD) — means M.D. of Mackenzie

Zoning — As per the Land Use Bylaw

Date

Resolution Number

Approved

June 18, 2002

02-460

Amended

Amended







Costs exceeding $100,000 accumulated throughout the year will be funded through

debentures at year-end and amortized over a 10 year period, provided that the M.D.

has the ability to borrow these funds pursuant to the MGA.

subdivisions.

Urban Development Standards

The following chart indicates the minimum standards on new development.

This policy is for new subdivisions only and wiil not be refroactive to any previous

Curb | Sidewalk | Under | St. Lights | St. Lights | Paved | Gravel ; Storm
ZONING & Ground | (under grd | (OH pwr) | Roads | Road | Sewer
Gutter Power pwr) (9m top)
HR1A | +* V* N v v MD
HR1 Ve v v MD
HR2 [ +* N v v v MD
HR3 | W | v y v MD
HCR v MD
Definitions

(v) ~ means the requirement.

(*) — means Local Improvement.

(MD) — means M.D. of Mackenzie

HR1A — On-site stick-built single detached residential dwellings and associated uses.

HR1 — Variety of residential uses (ie. mobile homes, modular homes, houses; stick-built
on-site or moved-in).

HR2 — Medium density residential development (ie. duplex, triplex, fourplex).

HR3 — High density residential development (ie. apartments, row-housing).

HCR — Multi-lot country residential size lots (large) within hamlet boundaries.

Date

Resolution Number

Approved

June 18, 2002

02-460

Amended

Amended










PROPOSED HAZARDOUS MATERIALS UNIT
Prepared by Rodney Schmidt

BACKGROUND

Qverview:

In October of 2003, the Town of High Level was the recipient of a Municipal
Sponsorship grant for the sum of $143,000.00 to provide a regional Hazardous
Materials and Technical Rescue Unit. This grant was a joint submission with the MD of
Mackenzie and the Town of Rainbow Lake.

A search for an appropriate used vehicle to suit the needs of the program has been
ongoing for some time. Shortly after the grant was received a vehicle was found in La
Trobe, Pennsylvania that will suit the needs of the program.

The vehicle is a 1991 Ford L-9000 truck with a 21 foot walk-in rescue body. It has low
mileage (13,000) and 2200 hours on the engine. It is equipped with a 20kw generator,
a 25ft, 6000 watt light tower, 6 additional flood lights, cord reels, hydraulic reels as well
as absorbent and decontamination tanks with reels for hazardous materials response.

It is currently being taken out of service by a volunteer fire department that is replacing it
with a new rescue vehicle.

A site visit was conducted by Rodney Schmidt, Director of Protective Services on
January 3™ and 4™ 2004 and found the vehicle to be in excellent condition. The vehicle
and associated information including pictures and videos have been reviewed by the
High Level Fire Department and the Director of Emergency Services for the MD of
Mackenzie and they agree that this vehicle will fit our needs.

Several other vehicles have been investigated throughout Canada and the US. This
vehicle is only one of two available that were built in the 1990’s. All other vehicle were
15 years or older. This vehicle also had the lowest mileage out of the vehicles
investigated. Newer vehicles than 1991 were hard to find and ali in excess of
$200,000.00. A new vehicle has been estimated to be in excess of $300,000.00 to build
with the same options as this vehicle.

A purchase price has been negotiated at $110,000.00 US. With the current exchange
rate, the price converts to approximately $141,350.00 CDN. Additional costs are as
follows:
o Transport to High Level: $5000.00
GST: 4240.50
Brokerage Fees: $1000.00
Decals: $2000.00
Radio Equipment:$2000.00
Total Estimated Cost: $155600.00

0ooooo

With the grant of $143,000.00 we have a funding shortfall of approximately $13,000.00.
We are suggesting that we split the additional funding requirements on a 50% basis with



the MD of Mackenzie as the two principal users of the vehicle. A similar requestis
being presented to the MD of Mackenzie Council on January 13, 2004. The additional
funding cap of $10,000 is being requested to ensure we can cover unexpected
expenses at customs. We are not anticipating problems but the funding should be in
place to cover contingencies.

Financial:

As mentioned in the overview, an additional funding request of up to $10,000.00 from
the Fire Department Equipment Reserve is being requested to be approved. The rest of
the vehicle is being funded from the Muni Grant and anticipated funding from the MD of

Mackenzie.

There is currently approximately $35000.00 in the equipment reserve

Plans:
Cnce approved a purchase contract will be signed and arrangements will be made for

the border transfer and shipment to High Level. It is anticipated that the vehicle may be
able to be in service by mid February.

Alternatives:

1. Approve the purchase of the 1991 Ford Rescue Vehicle from the Marguerite Fire
Department in La Trobe Pennsylvania with additional funding not to exceed $10,000.00
from the Fire Equipment Reserve

2. Recommend the Fire Department continue a search for an alternate vehicle
3. Other alternative as requested by council

Recommended Alternative: Alternative # 1

Reports/Documents:

Attached detailed description of the Rescue Vehicle for intended purchase.



1991 Ford Kenco Rescue Vehicle Spec Sheeet

Vehicle Make: Ford 1-9000—2 door

Engine: CAT 3406B — 350 HP

Transmission: Manual 9 Speed — Road Ranger
Mileage: 13000

Engine Hours: 2200

Body: 21 foot aluminum walk in rescue body (built by Kenco)
Body and Paint Condition — Very Good

Color: White/Green

Total height: 10° 4”

Total Length 32° 5”

Width: 8°6”

Accessories:

20 KW PTO hydraulic Generator

25 ft, 6000 watt light tower

2 — 1500 watt tripod lights

4 mounted 1000 watt body lights

3 air cascade bottles — 4500 psi

air bottle refill station

150ft ¥ air reel — electric rewind

Mounting for Hurst rescue tools

100 ft Hurst Hydraulic reel — electric rewind
2 — 150 watt cord reels with junction box — electric rewind
Emulsifier / decon fluid tank with 150 hose reel
Absorbal tank with 3” applicator hose
Command desk

Heated medical storage compartment

12000 Ib front mounted winch

Rudd Automatic ice chains

Adjustable shelving

Underbody storage

Bumper storage

6 mounted rechargeable flashlights

Strobe emergency lighting — upper body
Halogen emergency lighting — lower body
Code 3 MX3000 lightbar — halogen

Grill mount siren with red/white strobe lights
Wig wag headlights

Body heated and air conditioned

Radio mounting in rescue body

Bench seat with seatbelts for 4 people

6 air pack mounts

o O o I o Y I Iy [y

0000000000 0DOC0O0O0OOCO0O0OO0O00OCCOO0OO0O0















RECOMMENDED ACTION (by originator):

Motion 1:
That Gravel Crushing reserve RESV14 (code 4-32-720) to be established

Motion 2:

That 2003 unspent funds including the approved overage for West La Crete and
Tompkins pits crushing to be carried over to 2004 and placed into Gravel Crushing
reserve RESV14 (code 4-32-720) in order to complete 2003 gravel crush program at

the both pits.

Review: C.A.O.




Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23

[ Title | Gravel Crushing Reserve [ Policy No. | RESV 14 |

[ Account Code | 32-720 |

Purpose

To establish a grave! crushing reserve. This reserve will provide funding to cover the
gravel crushing costs associated with any MD gravel pit.

[ Targeted Minimum [ $200,000 |

[ Targeted Maximum | $500,000 |

Funding

Unspent budgeted funds from annual gravel operating expenditures (code 2-32-534)
will be placed into Gravel Crushing Reserve. During the years that require crushing,
the needed funds would be taken from this Reserve.

Policy Statement and Guidelines

1. The Chief Administrative Officer will ensure the overall effective administration of
dedicated reserves in accordance with this policy; recommending changes in
policy or guidelines to Council to ensure they are employed to the benefit of the
MD.

2. Annually, in conjunction with the budget process and the presentation of the
audited financial statements to MD council, a list indicating the current and
previous year-end balances for this reserve will be provided.

3. The use of this reserve to fund any expenditure must be by way of a Council
resolution or motion.

Date Resolution Number

Approved

Amended
Amended







Municipal District of Mackenzie
Water/Sewer Rate Calculation to reach break even point - 2004

2004 with La

Crete WTP

2000 - debt
current rates 2004 payment
Allocate fixed costs to metered and fruck & barrel fill users:

Total Fixed Cost $ 551,714 S 614,091 $ 1,014,829
Less: Frontage Revenue - 83,800 - 83,800
Sales of Goods and Services - 8,700 - 8,700
Penalties on A/R and utilities - 16,000 - 16,000
Provincial Grants - 354 - 354

Net Fixed Cost $ 551,714 $ 505,237 $ 905,975
Consumption - metered, m3 (this was an estimate for 2000 based on 1999 actual) 350,000 364,919 364,919
Consumption - truck & barrel, m3 (this was an estimate for 2000 based on 1999 actual) 120,000 191,159 191,159
Total consumption 470,000 556,078 556,078

Share of Fixed Cost - Metered - Hamlets
(Consumption - metered, m3 / Total Consumption, m3) x Net Fixed Cost, $= 410,851 331,555 594,534
2000: 350,000 m3 / 470,000 m3 x §551,714

Share of Fixed Cost - Truck & Barrel Fills
(Consumption - truck & barrel, m3 / Total Consumption, m3) x Net Fixed Cost, $= 140,863 173,682 311,440
2000: 120,000 m3 / 470,000 m3 x $551,714

Variance (Net Fixed Cost less Metered and Truck & Barrel Fill shares of fixed cost) - - -

Variable Cost (see Water Distribution Income Statement) 244,700 407,985 407,985
Calculate rate per m3 to cover variable cost:
Applies to both: Hamlet - metered water and Truck & Barrel Fill
Variable Cost, § / Total Consumption, m3 = ) 0.5206 $ 0.7337 $ 0.7337
2000: $244,700 / 470,000 m3

Change in rate per m3 required from 2000 to 2004 40.93% 40.93%






Municipal District of Mackenzie
SUMMARY - Water/Sewer Rate Calculations - 2004

REQUIRED RATES INCREASES TO REACH BREAK-EVEN Approved ‘
RATE CATEGORIES POINT INCLUDING COST OF THE BORROWING OF FUNDS FOR Break-even | oo ¢10% | Break-even
LC WTP Current Rate Rate increase for |Rate including
2004 LC WTP
Fixed meter ch based o 50 31 % increase in current rate for users with 5/8" meter 5 1698 | $ 1930 | $ 20.000 | § 34.604
ixed meter charge - based on meter size $38.07 o $27.79 t0 $49.83 1o
31 % increase in current rate for all other users $4,311.22 $3,161.73| No change $5,609.50
Per m3 charge - based on water usage 40.93% increase in per m3 current charges (.5206 0.7337 0.5727 0.7337
Sewer charge - based on total water charge 24.45% decrease in current sewer services charge 41.93% 45.58% 46.13% 31.68%
Charge for cardlock users - treated water 44% increase in current rate 1.7000 1.6423 | No change 2.3629
Charge for cardlock users - raw waler 48% increase in current rate 1.1000 1.1000 | No change 1.6292
EXAMPLE:
User with 5/8' meter and 20m3 per month consumption - compare current rate to break-even rate (without LC WTP debt):
current pay: $16.98 (fixed charge)+20 m3 x $.5206 + (($16.98+$10.42)x 41.93% (sewer rate)) = $ 38.89
pay at break-even rates: $19.30 (fixed charge}+20 m3 x $.7337 + (($19.30+314.68)x 45.58% (sewer rate)) = b 49.47
Total increase § 10.58
Total increase using break-even rates 27.20%
User with 5/8' meter and 20m3 per month consumption - compare current rate to approved rate:
current pay: $16.98 (fixed charge)+20 m3 x $.5206 + (($16.98-+$10.42)x 41.93% (sewer rate)) = 3 38.89
pay at approved rates:  $20 (fixed charge}+20 m3 x $.5727 + ((820+511.40)x 46.13% (sewer rate)) = h 45.97
Total increase § 7.08
Total increase using proposed rate 18.21%




Municipal District of Mackenzie

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) at proposed 10% rate increase calculation

WATER DISTRIBUTION DEPARTMENT

REVENUE

Meter Charge Revenue at proposed 10% increase for 5/8'" meters

Proposed fixed charge for 2004
Meter | Rate
Meter Size | Size | Ratio |Number of units| Monthly Charge |[Revenue
2004 2004
2.00

5/8" 0.63 1.00 1074 $20.00 $257,760
3/4" 0.75 1.44 31 38.07 14,162.04
1" 1.00 2.56 20 67.68 16,243.20
1.5"imperial 1.25 4.00 1 105.74 1,268.88
1.5" 1.50 5.76 11 152.27 20,099.64
2" 2.00 10.24 11 270.70 35,732.40
3" 3.00 23.04 609.08 -
4" 4.00 40.96 2 1,082.80 25,987.20
6" 6.00 92.16 2,436.31 -
8" 8.00 | 163.84 4,331.22 -

Total meter charge revenue: $ 371,253.36

Per m3 charge
Metered water sales

metered consumption x proposed rate $.5727

364,919 m3 x $.5727
Cardlock and Truck & Barrel Revenue

truck & barrel fill consumption x curent rate $1.70

191,159 m3 x §1.70

Sale of Goods and Services
Frontage

Penalties on A/R and utilities
Provincial Grant

TOTAL REVENUE

TOTAL 2004 budget EXPENDITURE

SURPLUS (DEFICIT)

$208,989

$324,970

38,700
$83,800
$16,000

$354

§ 1,014,067

$ 1,022,076

(8,009)







REVENUE

Frontage

Sales of Goods & Services
Sale of Water - Metered
Sale of Water - Bulk
Penalties on A/R in Utilities
Provincial Grants

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURE

Fixed Cost

Wages & Salaries

Benefits

‘WCB Coniributions
Isolation Cost

Travel & Subsistence
Membership/conference fees
Telephone

Advertising

Subscription & Publications
Legal

Engineering & Consulting
Professional Fees (40%)
Training & Education
Vehicle Repair

Building Rental

{35 ﬁ)
MD of Mackenzie o
Water Services
2000 2000 2001 2002 2003 2003 2004 .
increase/decr
ease from
Budget Total Total Total YTD Oct.31 Budget Budget 2000 actual to
3 3 $ 3 $ 3 b %
$85,676.00  $81,228.46  $81,967.29  $81,81530  $81,504.10  $84,000.00 $83,800.00 3%
2,119.78 6,096.23 10,570.87 8,350.00 11,300.00 8,700.00 310%
416,300.00  402,300.79 45337474  484,641.02  431,227.90  479,000.00 518,700.00 29%
389,100.00  375,994.4]1 231,341.32  283,803.35  260,244.76  280,000.00  309,600.00 -18%
15,000.00 22,579.64 16,712.12 15,714.03 17,260.49 15,000.00 16,000.00 -29%
2,247.00 1,018.19 2,024.38 1,517.90 963.74 964.00 354.00 -65%
908,323.00  885,241.27  791,516.08  878,062.47  799,550.99  870,264.00  937,154.00 6%
305,793.00  262,395.98  250,763.43  241,903.87  243,512.08  283,816.00  216,765.00 -17%
46,370.00 33,687.88 29,317.79 33,082.20 28,802.90 42,700.00 35,280.00 5%
3,360.00 2,353.11 1,809.00 4,120.00 3,918.89 5,160.00 4,452.00 89%
276.92 10,716.75 12,188.50 5,140.19 10,150.00 14,400.00 5100%
24,400.00 26,117.09 19,523.81 21,220.52 11,484.16 20,658.00 19,000.00 27%
600.00 296.64 929.81 684.48 282.68 1,000.00 500.00 69%
9,500.00 14,286.25 14,861.42 16,711.86 13,284.49 17,400.00 16,200.00 13%
6,830.00 1,124.82 1,119.72 1,300.49 743.01 1,000.00 1,000.00 -11%
194.26 353.76 1,000.00
51.97 1,611.75 1,214.97 2,000.00 1,000.00
1,702.28 7,651.89 8,80593 6,030.25 13,000.00 11,000.00 546%
16,000,00 21,511.65 7,456.71 8,148.45 5,950.96 10,440.00 8,200.00 -62%
6,450.00 4.405.28 8,139.60 7,279.23 2,890.87 13,700.00 9,500.00 116%
6,555.30 3,122.56 9,535.97 9,000.00 10,000.00
300.00

-100%



Communications

Licenses & Permits
Insurance

Goods & Supplies (40%)
Interest-Long Term Debt
Principle-Long Term Debt

Total Fixed Cost

Variable Cost

Freight

Equipment Repair

Damage Claims

Professional Fees (60%)
Building Repair & Maintenance
Structural Repair & Maintenance
Vehicle/Equipment Lease & Rental
Goods & Supplies (60%)

Fuel & Oil

Chemicals & Salt

Natural Gas

Electrical Power

Bad Debt Expense

Total Variable Cost

Surplus/Deficit before capital

1\-‘—/ a

2000 2000 2001 2002 2003 2003 2004 ,
increase/decr
ease from
Budget Total Total Total YTID Oct.31 Budget Budget 2000 actual to
5 3 5 5 5 $ 5 %
6,800.00 5,449.60 3,737.31 3,744.33 2,007.06 4,000,00 3,300.00 -39%
500.00 510.78 103.41 103.41 103.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 96%
6,091.00 11,562.73 8,466.02 15,112.77 11,313.20 10,730.00 18,020.00 56%
25,000.00 21,548.10 22,920.60 25,324.38 23,005.86 23,840.00 24,000.00 11%
42,096.00 46,580.44 54,234.36 66,094.25 57,229.38 57,230.00 47,676.00 2%
51,924.00 51,841.40 57,287.69 100,354.23 108,954.61 108,954.61 110,998.00 114% .
551,714.00  505,950.95  505,840.85 570,913.20  535,758.29 636,778.61  614,091.00 21%
2,127.07 31,10041 28,451.10 30,999.45 30,000.00 34,500.00 1522%
13,300.00 5,182.40 20,142.24 19,447.21 18,800.43 29,950.00 25,000.00 382%
48.92 1,107.41 o 5,000.00 5,000.00
22,500.00 32,267.47 11,185.07 12,222.67 - 8,926.45 15,660.00 12,300.00 -62%
7,900.00 6,094.08 9,515.95 9,817.81 16,880.08 14,000.00 12,500.00 105%
300.00 1,868.62 33,449.72 86,365.67 33,516.93 56,100.00 61,000.00 3164%
4,500.00 3,203.50 6,563.37 5,174.80 2,112.99 5,450.00 -100%
35,000,00 32,322.16 34,380.60 37,986.56 34,508.79 35,760.00 36,000.00 11%
2,700.00 15,565.15 24,047.58 20,635.09 13,478.82 20,200.00 19,500.00 25%
£8,000.00 81,338.72 75,155.28 80,893.10 59,596.79 78,000.00 79,000.00 -3%
18,500.00 23,359.01 27,325.91 24,204.75 29,018.99 24,500.00 36,950.00 58%
52,000.00 70,396.90  120,308.46 99,473.01 108,406.01 109,000.00 148,035.00 110% .
851.44 1,642.63 5,000.00
244,700.00  273,725.08  394,074.95  425,779.19  357,888.36  428,620.00  407,985.00 49%
111,909.08  105,565.24  (108,399.72) (118,629.92) (94,095.66} (195,134.61) (84,922.00) 20%

()



. O 9

_ N/
2000 2000 2001 2002 2003 2003 2004 .
increase/decr
ease from
Budget Total Total Total YTD Oct.31 Budget Budget 2000 actual to
L3 $ 5 ) 5 ) ) %

Capital cost funded from operating fund
Contributed to Capital 229,450.00  198,965.64 70,548.06 90,276.13 15,000.00
Contributed to Capital Reserve 4,561.00 516,668.00  516,668.00
Total capital cost 229,450.00  198,965.64 75,109.06 90,276.13  516,668.00  531,668.,00 0.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,025,864.00  978,641.67  975,024.86 1,086,968.52 1,410,314.65 1,597,066.61 1,022,076.00 4%
SURPLUSI(DEFICIT) (117,541.00)  (93,400.40) (183,508.78) (208,906.05) (610,763.66) (726,802.61)  (84,922.00) 9%

La Crete Water Treatment Plant Interest and Principle - long term debt payment 400,737.80

TOTAL EXPENDITURES including annual debt payment for LC WTP 1,422,813.80

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (485,659.80)

We are estimating that in 2004 we will have to borrow $3,000,000 for La Crete water treatment plant.
MD's annual payment for LC WTP, if calculated at 5.643% for a period of 10 years, will be $400,737.80.



Municipal District of Mackenzie

Water Revenue History
% increase .
Water Sales 2000 2001 2002 2003 estimated 2004 budget Jrom 2000

Sales of Goods & Services 2,119.78 6,096.23 10,570.87 11,300.00 ‘ 8,700.00 310%
Sale of Water - Metered 402,300.79 453,374.74 484,641.02 517,473.48 518,700.00 29%
Sale of Water - Bulk 375,994.41 231,341.32 283,803.35 312,293.71 309,600.00 -18%
Total Water Sales 780,414.98 690,812.29 779,015.24 841,067.19 837,000.00 7%

$600,000

$500,000

$400,000

$300,000 -}

$200,000 -

$100,000 -

$0

2000 2001 2002 2003 estimated 2004 budget

Sales of Goods & Services W Sale of Water - Metered
0 Sale of Water - Bulk

-:C} C {J




C O
N _

Municipal District of Mackenzie

Water Distribution Cost

7 % increase

: 2000 2001 2002 2003 estimated 2004 budget  from 2000

Fixed Cost 505,950.95 505,840.85 570,913.20 642,909.95 614,091.00 21%

Variable Cost 273,725.08 . 394,074.95 425,779.19 429,466.03. 407,985.00 49%

779,676.03 899,915.80 996,692.39 1,072,375.98  1,022,076.00 31%
$700,000
$600,000
$500,000
$400,000
$300,000
$200,000
$100,000

$_ . : ; TR TANE Ii. zi =
2000 2001 2002 2003 estimated 2004 budget
Fixed Cost - MVariable Cost




Municipal District of Mackenzie
Consumption History

% increase

2000 2001 - 2002 2003 estimated  from 2000
Consumption - La Crete 208,043.28  233,770.16  285,250.60 277,578.00 33%
Consumption - Fort Vermilion - 167,300.25  173,089.50  172,204.50 - 184,818.00 10%
Consumption - Zama ) 66,122.24 70,131.60 ~ 86,113.84 93,681.60 42%
' 441,465.77 476,991.26  543,568.94 556,077.60 26%
m3
300,000 .
250,000
200,000
150,000
100,000 4—
50,000
2000 2001 2002 2003 estimated
==Consumption - La Crete ==Consumption - Fort Vermilion - Consumptic_)n - Zama
- = ‘/-'\\
s 7N S
\\/' u



0

Municipal District of Mackenzie
2003 Water Consumption Report

Water Consumption
La Crete
Hamlet water -treated
Cardlock - raw water metered
Cardlock - treated
Cardlock - raw water truck fill
Total La Crete
Fort Vermilion
Hamlet water -treated
Cardlock - treated
Cardlock - treated
Tallcree - treated
Truck fill - raw water
Total Fort Vermilion
Zama
Hamlet water -treated
Cardlock - treated
Truck fill - raw water
Total Zama

Total water consumption M3

YTD Total Estimated
2003-10-30 2003 Total
M3 M3
152,597 183,116
4,607 5,528
63,751 76,501
10,360 12,432
231,315 277,578
89,554 107,465
1,181 - 1,417
43,244 51,893
5,631 6,757
14,405 17,285
154,015 184,817
56,317 67,530
21,751 26,101
78,068 93,681
463,397 556,076




REVENUE
124-FRONTAGE
421-SALE OF WATER -METERED

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURE

110-WAGES & SALARIES

132-BENEFITS

136-WCB CONTRIBUTIONS

150-ISOLATION COSTS

217-TELEPHONE

232.LEGAL :

233-ENGINEERING CONSULTING
235-PROFESSIONAL FEES

252-BUILDING REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
253-EQUIPMENT REPAIR

259-STRUCTURAL R&M (ROADS, SEWERS, WATE
263-VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT LEASE OR RENTAL
272-DAMAGE CLAIMS '
274-INSURANCE

511-GOODS AND SUPPLIES
531-CHEMICALS/SALT

MD of Mackenzie
42-Sewer Services

2002 2003 2003 2004
YTD YTD Budget Budget
69,475 67,648 75,000 76,154
198,026 172,794 199,000 207,800
267,502 240,442 274,000 283,954
132,170 135,063 162,006 131,220
20,208 14,381 125,850 21,260
2,736 2,253 2,965 2,726
1,786 2,880
3,078 1,971 3,060 1,450
2,000 2,000
515 . 11,000 7,000
378 873 3,600
238 170 6,500 2,900
3,590 4,077 7,100 4,900
14,665 14,439 26,000 22,000
4,251 1,877 5,400 :
' 5,000
3,880 5,955 5,240 7,352
9,227 8,385 9,500 9,000
- 2,657 2,210 5,700 4,200
o
_J

)



5

2002

2003 2003 2004
YTD XTD Budget Budget

543-NATURAL GAS 2,909 2,834 4,050 5,090
544-ELECTRICAL POWER 11,823 13,609 16,800 17,630
831-INTEREST-LLONG TERM DEBT 32,326 35,503 © 49,900 39,483
832-PRINCIPAL - LONG TERM DEBT 51,402 57,105 92,230 71,108
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 295,539 303,007 446,781 349,319
SURPLUS(DEFICIT) (28,037 {62,565) (172,781) (65,365)

SEWAGE REVENUE AT PROPOSED 10% RATE INCREASE 259,818.14

FRONTAGE REVENUE 76,154.00

TOTAL REVENUE 335,972.14

TOTAL 2004 budget EXPENDITURE 349,319.00

SURPLUS (DEFICIT)

(13,346.86)













K

Municipal District of Mackenzie
Per meter fixed charge calculation

Net Fixed Costs: $551,714 $505,237 $905,975 .
‘ Current fixed charge calculation from 2000 Break-even fixed charge Fixed charge including cost of borrowing for LC WTP,
: Meter | Rate Number of o
Meter Size | Size | Ratio units Monthly Charge | Revenue |Number of units| Monthly Charge |Revenue Number of units| Monthly Charge |Revenue
2000 2000 2004 2004 2004 2004
2.00 '
5/8" 0.63 1.00 943 $26.44 $299,195.04 1074 $19.30 $248,708 1074 $34.60 - $445,975
3/4" 0.75{ 1.44 28 38.07 12,792.73 31 . 27.79 10,337.37 31 49.83 18,536.62
1" 1.00 2.56 18 67.68 14,618.88 20 49.40 11,856.48 20 88.59 21,260.64
1.5"imperial 1.25|  4.00 ! 105.74 1,268.88 1 77.19 926.29 1 138.42 1,660.99
1.5" 1.50 5.76 13 152.27 23,754.12 11 111.15 14,672.39 11 199.32 26,310.04
2" 2.00 [ 10.24 12 270.70 38,980.80 11 197.61 26,084.25 11 354.34 46,773.40
3" 3.00| 23.04] ° 1 609.08 7,308.96 444.62 - 797.27 -
4" 4.00 | 40.96 1 1,082.80 12,993.60 2 790.43 18,970.36 2 1,417.38 34,017.02
6" 6.00 [ 92.16 0 2,436.31 - 1,778.47 - 3,189.10 -
8" 8.00 [ 163.84 0 4,331.22 - 3,161.73 - 5,669.50 -
* Total Revenue: | $ 410,913.01 * Total Revenue: | $ 331,555.24 * Total Revenue: | $ 594,533.76
l 31%

Percent change from 2000 rate to 2004 break-even rate

* - Share of Fixed Cost - Metered - Hamlets (see water/sewer rate calculation worksheet, page 10)

** - users with 5/8" meters will have 13.67%

users with 5/8" is $16.98

increase because according to current bylaw the fixed charge for

-27%















Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
BYLAW NO. 349/03

Page 3

The following regulations apply to the usage of water and sewer supplied by
the Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 in the hamlets of Zama, Fort
Vermilion, and La Crete as established with designated boundaries and
approved by the Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23.

REQUIREMENT TO CONNECT TO WATER AND SEWER MAINS

Each and every dwelling and every occupied building situated on land
abutting the water and/or sewer mains of the Hamlet, shall be connected
with connections approved by the Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 to
the said water and/or sewer mains and shall be serviced with at least the
minimum water and sewer facilities.

No development other than that specified in Section 3.2 of Bylaw 181/99
(Land Use Bylaw) shall be undertaken within the Municipal District of
Mackenzie, unless an application for it has been approved by the
Development Officer and a Development Permit has been issued. Permit
applications shall be supplemented by any plans, specifications or other
information considered necessary by the Development Officer.

The owner/occupant shall connect to the water and/or sewer main within
twelve (12) months once the residence is within 30 meters of the public
services. The Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 may designate an
individual firm to enter on the land, building, erection, or structure to install
water/sewer services and charge the cost thereof against the land, building,
erection or structure in question, in the same manner as taxes and with the
same priority as to lien and to payment thereof, as in the case of ordinary
Municipal taxes. Al Hamlet Residential development must connect to
municipal - services with the exception of Hamlet Country Residential

development.

At such time as the Development Permit has been approved, the owner
shall complete an application for water and sewer installation form and
forward the same to the nearest Municipal District office where the
development is to take place. Once application has been received the
Utilities Officer shall provide the water and or sewer service. All costs
pertaining to the construction and supplies used for the water/sewer service
shall be charged back to the property owner.

All construction/installations of water/sewer services from water/sewer
mains to property line shall cease on October 15 of each calendar year and
commence again on April 15 of each calendar year.



Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
BYLAW NO. 349/03

Page 4

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Provisions of interceptors:

a) (1) Grease, cil and sand interceptors shall be provided on private
property by the owner for all garages/shops with floor drains,
gasoline service stations and vehicle and equipment washlng
establishments. Restaurants, also, shall provide grease traps.

b) All interceptors shall be:

(1) of atype and capacity approved and certified under the Plumbtng
Code,

(2) located to be readily and easily accessible for cleaning and
inspection,
and,

(3) maintained by the owner or occupier at his/her expense,

Catch basins shall be maintained on private property by the
owner/occupant at his/her expense.

No person shall connect, lay or cause to be laid, or attach any pipe, or < )
main, wire, rod, drain or outlet of any kind, without the consent of the
Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23.

No person shall discharge into the sewer system any commercial or
industrial waste of such nature as may, in the opinion of the Utilities Officer
or hisfher agent, prevent or impair the efficient operatlon of the sewer
system or any part thereof.

No person shall do any work upon or interfere in any way with the water or
sewer system unless specifically authorized to do so by the Ultilities Officer

or hisfher agent.

The owner of any building connected to the water and/or sewer system
shall, at all reasonable times, allow or permit the Utilities Officer or his/her
agent to enter into and upon the premises for the purpose of inspecting
connections, drains, and any other apparatus used in connection with the
water and sewer system.

The ownerloccupant' shall, at his/her own expense, maintain the water and
sewer service lines from his/her property line to the building.



Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
BYLAW NO. 349/03

Page 5

17.

18.

19.

20.

21,

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

TAPPING WATER AND SEWER MAINS

No persons except authorized empioyees of the Municipality, or persons
duly authorized by the Municipality, shall make any connection or
communication whatsoever with any of the public pipes or mains in the
public thoroughfares of the Municipality.

All water service pipes laid in private property, between the property line
and the water meter, shall be of a material that meets the plumbing code.
No connection may be made to the water service pipe between the property
line and the water meter, unless such connection is metered and is
approved by the Chief Administrative Officer or designate.

All sewer service pipes laid in private property, between the property line
and the interior of the building, shall be of a material to meet the Plumbing

Code.

Unless otherwise approved in writing by a certified engineer, all new sewer
connections shall have a back flow prevention device installed, and such
device must meet the Plumbing Code and may be inspected by a Utilities

Officer.

A separate and independent water and sewer service shall be provided to
every lot, unless otherwise required or approved in writing by the Chief
Administrative Officer.

All tapping and backfilling shall be done to meet the Plumbing Code and at
the cost of the developer.

INSPECTIONS

The Municipélity is responsible for the inspection of all service connections,
including the type of materials used.

All connections shall be inspected and approved by an authorized
employee prior to back fill. However, any damage during backfilling shall be
the responsibility of the landowner.

If any connections to the Municipalitys water and sewer system are
covered or concealed before it is inspected, or tested, it shall be uncovered
if the authorized employee so directs.

A minimum of two (2) working days notice is required for all inspections. If
the inspection is an urgent situation requiring a response in less then the

—~ v 20



Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
BYLAW NO. 349/03

Page 6

27.

28.

29,

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

required two (2) working days, and the Municipality agrees to respond in
less then two (2) working days, the cost of responding to such a request
may be billed at a rate in accordance with fee Schedule “A”, in addition to
normal fees to the person, corporation, or other such entities to whom the
water and sewer charges are being biiled, have been billed or will be billed.

WATER METERS

Each and every water service aftached fo the water system shall be
metered and the water consumed, as indicated by the meter, shall be paid
for in accordance with Schedule “A”.

All water meters shall be supplied and installed by the Municipal District of
Mackenzie No. 23 at the expense of the Municipality. All water meter
installations shall be carried out by qualified personnel and each installation
shall be subjected to an inspection by a person authorized or employed by
the Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23.

All meters, are_and shall remain the property of the Municipal District of
Mackenzie No. 23 and as such shall be moved, changed, repaired, efc. by
authorized employees only and at the discretion of the Municipality.

All water meters and remote readers must be installed in an approved
location set by the developer and the Utilities Officer and be readily
accessible to authorized persons for the purpose of reading, inspecting or

changing same.

The consumer shall give access to an authorized person or persons who
may be under contract to the Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 to a
meter for the purpose of reading, inspecting, or changing same, and shall
be responsible to keep said meter free from damage. The consumer may
be liable for any damage which occurs to the meter.

The consumer must report to the Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 any
damage caused to their meter within one regular worklng day upon
dlscovenng the damage.

' An authorized employee may undertake such repairs/replacements and

charge all costs to the account of the consumer.

All shut-off valves and meters must be left accessible for inspections, repair,
removal, maintenance, reading, and testing, at all reasonable times.

()

)

()



5

)

s

Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
BYLAW NO. 349/03
Page 7

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

Repairs necessitated to meters through normal operation and wear and tear
will be repaired by the municipality, and will be considered as an operating
expense and as such, charged to the water department.

No meter by-pass line shall be installed without having obtained prior
written approval by the Chief Administrative Officer or designate.

All meters and meter installations shall be sealed by the Municipality.
Where a by-pass line and valve are instailed around the meter, this valve
shall also be sealed in a closed position. These sealing devices will be
installed by authorized employees only and are not to be broken, except in
the case of emergency when the seal on a by-pass valve may be broken.
The breaking of any seals whether by accident or emergency shall be
reported immediately to the Municipality.

No person shall:

i) interfere with the seals or tamper with any meter. -

fi) tamper with any remote water meter reader or connection thereto.

iii} willfully, and without authority, hinder, interrupt, or cut off the supply
of water. '

Any damage caused to meters and/or remote water meter readers through
abuse, tampering, freezing or. hot water shall be considered the
responsibility of the consumer. Damage to the remote water meter reader
will be repaired or replaced with all costs being assigned to the account of
the customer.

Shouid any person claim a meter is not working properly and is over
reading, said person shall pay a fee to the Municipal District of Mackenzie
No. 23 the sum set out in Schedule “A”. The meter will then be removed
from service and given a proper bench test. Should the said meter be
found to over read by more than 3%, the said person shall be refunded their
fee. Any meter which meets the requirements previously stated shall be
considered adequate and the person shall forfeit the said fee to the
Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 to cover costs of removal and test of
the said meter. All conveniences during business hours shall be afforded
the said person to witness meter tests.

The size of all meters installed shall be determined by the Municipal District
of Mackenzie No. 23 and will not necessarily conform to the size of service
pipe installed in the building but will, however, be based on the estimated
rate of consumption.



Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
BYLAW NO. 349/03
Page 8

42. Should a meter cease to operate between reading periods; billing of the
account will be done on an estimated consumption for the period. This
estimate will be based on previously obtained consumption figures.

FIRE HYDRANTS AND VALVES

43. Except as hereinafter provided, no persons other than authorized persons
set out by the Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 shail open, close,
operate, or interfere with any valve, hydrant or fire plug, or draw water there

from.

44. The Chief of a Rural Fire Protection Association or a Voluntary Fire Brigade,
his assistants and officers, are authorized to use the hydrants or piugs for
the purpose of extinguishing fires, for making trail of hose pipe or for fire
protection, but all such uses shail be under the direction and supervision of
the said Chief or histher duly authorized assistants and in no event shall an
inexperienced or incompetent person be permitted to manipulate or control
in any way any hydrant or plug. No person shall in any matter obstruct the
free access to any hydrant or valve or curb stop. No vehicle, building,
rubbish or any other matter which could cause obstruction shall be placed
nearer to a hydrant than the property line of the street in which the hydrant
is located, nor within twenty (20) feet of the hydrant in the direction parallel

with the said property line.

RATIONING OF WATER

45. The Chief Administrative Officer of the Municipal District of Mackenzie No.
23 may order water rationing as and when needed.

DAMAGED CURB STOPS

46. The property owner may be held responsible for any damages incurred by
the owner on the curb stop which services the property owner. The
Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 may designate an individual firm to
repair damages of said curb stop, and charge the cost of such repairs to the

property owner.

@

)



)

Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
BYLAW NO. 349/03
Page 9

47.

48.

49,

50.

51.

52,

53.

54,

55.

CONNECTION OR DISCONNECTION OF SERVICES

A minimum of two (2) working days shall be required for connection or
disconnection of services. If service is required within the two (2) working
days a fee for service will be charged in accordance with Schedule “A”.

After any construction, reconstruction, alteration, change or the completion
of any work requiring a permit, WATER SHALL NOT BE TURNED ON to
any building or premises until the work has been done to the satisfaction of
an authorized person.

Water shall be turned on or off at the curb stop ONLY by an authorized
person, '

The Municipality shali not be held responsible for damages caused within a
residence or other building as a result of turning water on or off at a curb

stop.

DMINISTRATION OF WATER AND SEWER COSTS

Water and sewer service charges or rates shall be levied and collected
monthly from all persons, corporations, or other such entities connected to
and utilizing the Hamlets of Zama, Fort Vermilion, and La Crete water and
sewer system in accordance with Schedule “A”. :

Water accounts shall be payable to Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
at the Zama, Fort Vermilion, High Level, or La Crete office, or such other
places as designated by Council.

The Chief Administrative Officer or designate may shut off or discontinue
water service for non-payment of account or failure to make application for
water/sewer connection. Fee to reconnect such service as per Schedule

IIA” .

Any charges for damage or rates, penalties and/or fees levied, shall be
subject to court action if the occupant is a person other than the owner of
the property; or in the case of the owner of the property to the same
penalties and is collectable by the same procedure as taxes levied by the
Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23.

Failure of the con'sumer, beihg charged for water service, to receive a
statement of account shall in no way affect the liability of such consumer to
pay such levies and charges.

o 24



Mumicipal District of Mackenzie No, 23
BYLAW NO. 349/03
Page 10

56. Upon closure of an account where the consumer is the owner of a mobile

57.

58.

59.

60.

home, and is removing such mobile home from the lot on which it was
situated, must return the water meter to the Municipal District of Mackenzie
No. 23 office. The Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 will refund money
to the consumer as per Schedule “A” within forty (40) days upon return of
the water meter, providing the meter is returned in good condition.

DISPOSAL OF WATER

No person being an owner, occupier, or tenant of any house, building or.

other premises which are supplied with water from the water system shall
vend, sell, or dispose of water therefrom, or give away, or permit the same
to be taken or carried away, or use, or supply it to the use or benefit of
others, or to- any use other then his‘her own use and benefit, or shall
increase the supply of water beyond that fixed by the rating of the premises,
or shall wrongfully, negligently, or improperly waste any water, unless prior
written approval has been received by the Chief Administrative Officer or

designate.

WELLS AND OTHER SOURCES OF SUPPLY OF WATER

No wells or other source of supply of water except the Hamlets of the
Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 water system shall be used in the
Municipality without prior written permission having been obtained by the
Chief Administrative Officer or designate.

Any such permission may be withdrawn by order of the Chief Administrative
Officer or designate at any time, without notice, and no person shall use a
well or other source of supply of water after a permit for use of the same

has been withdrawn.

USE AND PROTECTION OF SEWER SYSTEM

No person shall throw, deposit or leave in or upon any Hamlet sewer or.

storm drainage, or any trap, basin, grating, or other appurtenance of any
Hamlet sewer, any butchers’ offal, garbage, litter, manure, rubbish,
sweepings, sticks, stones, bricks, feathers, tar, earth, gravel, dirt, mud, hay,
straw, twigs, leaves, papers, glass, rags, cinders, ashes, any inflammable,
hydrocarbon or explosive material, or refuse matter of any kind, except
feces, urine, the necessary closet paper, waste water, slops properly
discharged through the Hamiet sanitary sewer.

()

O

%

L



&

Municipal District of Mackenzie No, 23
BYLAW NO. 349/03 '
Page 11

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

No person shall permit to be discharged into any sewer, any liquid or liquids
which would prejudicially effect the sewers or the disposal of the sewage, or
any matter of substance by which the free flow of the sewage may be
interfered with, or any chemical refuse, or other trade waste, or any waste
stream, condensing water, or other liquids of a higher temperature than
sixty-five (65) degrees Celsius.

No person shall make or cause to be made any connection with any Hamlet
sewer, house drain, or appurtenance thereof for the purpose of conveying,
or which may convey, into the same any roof drainage, weeping tile, cistern
or tank overflow, condensing or cooling water, or discharge the contents of
any privy vault, manure pit or cesspool, directly or indirectly, into any
Hamlets sewer or house drain connected therewith without the written
permission of the Chief Administrative Officer or designate.

No person shall turn, lift, remove, or tamper with the cover of any manhole
ventilator or other appurtenance of any Hamlet sewer, except duly
authorized employees of the Municipality.

No person shall cut, break, pierce, or tap any Hamlet sewer or
appurtenance thereof, or induce any pipe, tube, trough, or conduit into any
Hamlets sewer, unless so authorized by an authorized employee of the

Municipality. .

No person shall interfere with the free discharge of any Hamlet sewer, or
part thereof, or do any act or thing which may impede, obstruct the flow, or
clog up any Hamlet sewer or appurtenance thereof.

Authorized employees of the Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 shall
have the right at all reasonable times to enter houses or places which have
been connected with the Hamilet sewers, and facilities must be given him to
ascertain whether or not any improper material or liquid is being discharged
into the sewer, and he/she shall have the power to stop or prevent from
discharging into the sewer system any private sewer or drain through which
substances are discharged which are liable to injure the sewers or obstruct
the flow of sewage.

USE AND PROTECTION OF THE STORM DRAINAGE SYSTEM

No person shall throw, deposit or leave in or upon any Hamlet storm
drainage system, or any trap, basin, grating, or other appurtenance of the
Hamlet drainage system, any butchers’ offal, garbage litter, manure,
rubbish, sweepings, sticks, stones, bricks, feathers, tar, earth, gravel, dir,

26



Municipal District of Mackenzie No, 23
BYLAW NO. 349/03
Page 12

68.

69.

mud, hay, straw, twigs, leaves, papers, glass, rags, cinders, ashes, any
inflammable or explosive material, feces, urine, closet paper, waste water,
slops, or any other liquid or chemical or refuse matter of any kind.

CONTRAVENTION

A person who contravenes a provision of this Bylaw is guilty of an offence
and liable on summary conviction to the penalty as prescribed in Schedule
“B" of this Bylaw or, on summary conviction to a fine not less than twenty
($20.00) and not more than five thousand ($5,000.00), and in the event of a
failure to pay the fine to imprisonment for a period not exceeding six (6)

months.

Violation tickets shall be issUed in accordance with the Provinbial Offences
Procedure Act.

RESCINDING OF FORMER BYLAWS

70. This Bylaw rescinds Bylaw No. 210/00.
DATE OF COMMENCEMENT
71. This Bylaw shall take effect on the date of the thlrd and final readlng
thereof
First Reading given on the __11" day of March ’ . 2003.
“B. Neufeld” (Signed) | “B. Spurgeon” (Signed)
Bill Neufeld, Reeve Barb Spurgeon, Executive Assistant
Second Reading given on the 11" dayof March , 2003.
“B. Neufeld” (Signed) “B. Spurgeon” {Signed)
Bill Neufeld, Reeve - Barb Spurgeon, Executive Assistant

27

9

()



Mounicipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
BYLAW NO. 349/03
Page 13

Third Reading and Assent given on the

“B. Neufeld” (Signed)

Bill Neufeld, Reeve

11" day of March

, 2003.

“B. Spurgeon” (Signed)

Barb Spurgeon, Executive Assistant

28



Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
BYLAW NO. 349/03
Page 14

BYLAW NO. 349/03
SCHEDULE “A”

SCHEDULE OF WATER RATES, PENALTIES, AND FEES AND DEPOSITS

FOR THE HAMLETS OF ZAMA, FORT VERMILION, AND LA CRETE

WATER WORKS SYSTEM-

(A) Water System Fixed Rates — Monthly based on meter size

5/8" meter (including all 32" residential meters in Zama)

$16.98 per month

%" meter other than residential $38.07 per month

1‘” meter $67.67 per month

1 14" meter ' $105.75 per month

1 12" meter $152.27 per month
2" meter $270.69 per month
3" meter $609.06 per month
4" meter | $1,082.78 per month
6" meter | $2,436.25 per month
8" meter - ' $4,331.10. per monfh

(B) Water Consumption Charges

Rate per Cubic Meter | $0.5206

(C) Water Rates —Treated - Bulk

Rate for barrel and truck fills $1.70 / cubic meter -
$0.77 / 100 Imp. gallons

29



2

@

\_

Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
BYLAW NO. 349/03

Page 15

(D) Water Rates — Raw

Rate for raw water $1.10/ cubic meter
$0.50 / 100 Imp. galions

(E) Sewer Rates — Monthly

Shall b'e applied at 41.94% of the total water fixed and consumption
amount,

(F) Fees and Deposits

()]
(i)
(iif)

(iv)

(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Application fee for new service - $20.00
Transfer from one service to another - $20.00

a) Reconnection of service due to non-payment of account in
accordance with Section 53 - $50.00

b) Fee for service required to connect or disconnect water upon
the request of the customer within the two (2) working days
requirement in accordance with Section 47 - $20.00

Fee for inspection of water connection within the required two (2}
day notification in accordance with Section 25 - $20.00

Deposit for cardiock - $20.00
Deposit for keylock - $20.00

If the occupant to whom the public utility is supplied is a person
other than the owner or purchaser of the building or lot, or is the
owner of a mobile home, he shall be required to pay to the
Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 a fee of $150.00.

Upon the retumn of a water meter from the person in accordance
with Section 56 due to the closure of an account, the Municipal
District of Mackenzie No. 23 will refund $100.00 to that person.
The remaining $50.00 shall be used as a service charge by the-
Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 to ensure that the water
meter is functioning properly.

A $50.00 fee for water meter testing in accordance with Section 40.

30



Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
BYLAW NO. 345/03

Page 16

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

Deposits may be transferable from one service to another by the
same consumer. -

The fee shall be retained by Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
and applied against any outstanding balance upon disconnection of
the service. In the event there is no outstanding balance or service
charges remaining on the account upon disconnection of the
service, the Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 shall refund

money to the customer within forty (40) days.

In any case money deposited with Municipal District of Mackenzie

No. 23 as a guarantee deposit remains unclaimed for a period of
five years after the account of the consumer so depositing has
been discontinued, the amount of the deposit shall be transferred to

the general revenue account of the Municipal District of Mackenzie

No. 23

The Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 remains liable to repay
the amount of the deposit to the person lawfully entitled thereto for
a period of ten years next following the discontinuance of the
account but after the ten year period the deposit becomes the
absolute property of Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 free
from any claim in respect thereof.

$30.00 per hour fee per utilities officer for services required to
construct, repair, or service where the responsibility for required
work was born by the developer, consumer or corporation.

@



e

@

Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
BYLAW NO. 349/03

Page 17

BYLAW NO. 349/03

SCHEDULE “B”

SCHEDULE OF FINES

WATER WORKS SYSTEM

FOR THE HAMLETS OF FORT VERMILION, LA CRETE AND ZAMA

The voluntary payment, which may be accepted in lieu of prosecution for a
contravention of any of the sections set out below, shall be the sum set out
opposite the section number:

SECTION “DESCRIPTION PENALTY
5 Failing to connect to water and sewer facilities $2,500.00
7 Failing to connect to public service(s) _ $ 100.00
8 Failing to obtain permits $ 50.00
10a Failing to provide grease, oil, sand traps $1,000.00
11 Failing to maintain catch basin $ 75.00
12 Failing to receive consent from M.D. #23 $ 250.00
13 Discharging waste that impairs efficient operation of system $2,500.00
14 Interfering with water or sewer system $2,500.00
15 Failing to allow M.D. staff or agent to enter premises $ 250.00
16 Failing to maintain water or sewer system $ 100.00
17 Unauthorized connection or communication to pipes or mains $1,000.00
18 Failure to use proper material $ 250.00
18 Connection made between property line and meter without | $§ 250.00
approval
19 Failure to use proper material $ 250.00
20 Failing to install backflow preventer $ 150.00
22 Failure to execute proper tapping or backfilling 250.00
24 Covering a water or sewer system prior to inspection $ 250.00
25 Failing to uncover a water or sewer system at the request of an | $ 500.00
authorized employee after it has been covered
29 Taking water meter without returning it to the municipality $ 150.00
31 Refusing to allow access $ 250.00
31 Damage to water meter ¢ 50.00
32 Failing to report damage to water meter $ 20.00
34 Failure to leave shut-off vaive and or water meter accessible $ 100.00
36 Installing water meter by-pass without authorization $ 500.00
37 Failing to report broken seal to municipality $ 20.00
38l interfere with seals or tamper with meter $ 500.00
38ii Tamper with remote reader or connection $ 500.00
38iii Interrupt, hinder, or cut off supply of water $ 500.00
43 Interfering with valve, hydrant, or fire plug, or draw water from $ 500.00
44 Vehicle, building, rubbish, or other matter within twenty {20) feet { $ 100.00

of a hydrant

32




Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
BYLAW NO. 349/03

Page 18
49 lllegal operation of curb stop valve $ 250.00
56 Failure to return water meter $ 150.00
57 lllegal disposal of water $1,500.00
58 Waell or other source of water supply $ 150.00
60 lllegal disposal in sewer or storm dramaLsystem $2,500.00
61 llegal disposal in sewer system $2,500.00
| 62 lllegal connection to sewer drain house $ 500.00
63 Tampering with manhole cover $ 100.00
64 Cut, break, pierce, or tap in sewer system or appurtenance $1,500.00
65 Interfering with free sewer discharge flow $1,500.00
66 Failure to allow M.D. staff onto property for the inspection of | $ 250.00
sewerage drainage
67 lllegal disposal into storm drainage system $2,500.00

33

)

»






WHEREAS flying into the Edmonton City Center Airport allows less than two hour
access from places like High Level to these important health care facilities, especially
for those needing to see specialists or access such specialized care on outpatient
bases; and for those visiting sick loved ones, and wishing to return home the same day;
and

WHEREAS older people and those with children need washrooms in order to travel by
air; and

WHEREAS the smallest aircraft with washrooms are 19 seat aircraft, which are also the
most economically viable means of air transportation in the north when allowed to
operate at full capacity; and

WHEREAS l[anding at the Edmonton International Airport adds unreasonable time and
expense to access important health facilities for northerners; and

WHEREAS the extra expense at the time may cause people needing these specialized
care services to wait until their ailment becomes an emergency;

NOW THEREFORE BE IN RESOLVED that the Council of the Municipal District of
Mackenzie strongly urges the Alberta Government to use their authority to declare that
19 seat aircraft, carrying 19 passengers, ianding at the Edmonton City Center Airport
from Northern regions of Alberta is necessary to guarantee the universality of our health
system.

Review: Dept. C.A.O.




Town of High Level
9813 - 102™ Street

High Level, AB TOH 120
Canada

Telephone: (780) 926-2201
Facsimile; {780) 926-2899
town@highlevel.ca
www.highlevel.ca

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

December 19, 2003

William Neufeld

Reeve | B————
Municipal District of MacKenzie No. 23 @E

Box 640

Fort VermilionAB ‘ ryam 0 2 2004
TOHINO : . niPAL DiSTme ‘

‘ O“F MACKENZIE NG %
Dear Mr, Neufeld: 3 b, - FORT VERN ,_,,_'.’.'.,a!

e TR AL AT AR
P ssmntram S A PR

RE EDMONTON CITY CENTRE AIRPORT

The Town of High Level has been actively involved in the current debate regarding the
Edmonton Airport Authority’s decision to stop scheduled aircraft as of January 1, 2005.
Other proposed restrictions have also been discussed in the press and at various meetings
over the past few months as most of you are aware.

Therefore our Council passed the attached resolution, and is requesting your support. The
economic impact on our non-business travelers is significant, and we suspect this is true
of residents from other municipalities in a similar position to ourselves.

We would appreciate your consideration of this request, and ask that you send letters to

the Premier, the Minister of Economic Development, the Minister of Abceriginal and
Northern Development, and the Minister of Municipal Affairs.

Yours truly,

Mike Mihaly
Mayor

Crossroads of Northerrr Opportunity



RESOLUTION

Resolution to operate 19 passengers planes to Edmonton C1ty Centre Airport
(Passed by the Town of High Level Council on December 15, 2003) :

WHEREAS the Government of Alberta’s pnmary strategies in achieving early access to :
health care is to establish the most up-to-date and specialized facilities in major centres
like Edmonton and Calgary to serve all Albertans; and

WHEREAS the great majority of Albertans are living less than two hours or so from
these centres; and

WHEREAS flying into the Edmonton City Centre Airport allows less than two hour .
access from places like High Level to these important health care facilities, especially for
those needing to see specialists or access such specialized care on outpatient bases; and
for those visiting sick loved ones, and wishing to return home the same day; and -

WHEREAS older people and those with children need washrooms in order to travel by
air; and

WHEREAS the smallest aircraft with washrooms are 19 seat aircraft, which are also the-
most economically viable means of air transportation in the north when allowed to
operate at full capacity; and

WHEREAS landing at the Edmonton International Airport adds unreasonab]e time and
expense to access important health facilities for northerners and

WHEREAS the extra expense and the time may cause people needing these spec1allzed |
care services to wait until their ailment becomes an emergency,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the Town of High Level :
strongly urges the Alberta government to use their authority to declare that 19 seat
aircraft, carrying 19 passengers, landing at the Edmonton City Centre Airport from
Northem regions of Alberta is necessary to guarantee the universality of our health
system.

Mayor Mike Mihaly






" Dec 22/03

' %ab‘}:)@ra \5]3%\’{;_&0?1 5

[ty wreifing in reqards o Yho app (ol s
tor apporntments T She assessmen] review oA, —
| have heen employed @ e M 23 fer gusiover

. 17 yeacs. cind houc Cf_(tfnl?cﬂ_ <l pericac e 17 asSSessing

?Y”W'f‘h?‘s during that ime MosT assessmeals (e
d%/f{_-w(‘{'{'\ would be Araincge., Szwms 7 Gnd Yoo
repeity and preper Puildin set backs . _ _
. ! P ; /acfz,,p buclcd ing 74556"55/?7(?:/' o b ol garn
evperience 14 buslcting Coctes tviFh o previecs €mployer

Wil whom [ famed harses and a couple stp walls.
W and acouwnd Heo Edmenten area.

Fhand Yo e

X by
For t Verny fion 44

0t JNC
750 27 9323
cetl G2¢ 7635

e, My vl resime
May be obtaned of Heo
me office m Ff. Vecnei{1on .

11988, 2000. DAY-TIMERS, inc. * PRINTED INL






Alberia

NORTHERN ALBERTA
DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

Northern Development Branch Lac La Biche Office
206, Provincial Building PO Box 1650
9621 - 96 Avenue Lac La Biche, Alberta

Postal Bag 900-14 c T
Peace River, Alberta anada TOA 2C0
Canada T8S 1T4 Telephone 780/623-6982

Telephone 780/624-6274 Fax 780/623-6984
December 8, 2003 Fax 780/624-6184 nade.council@gov.ab.ca

www.gov.ah.ca/nade/

Iris Kurash, 7Bill Neufeld,
Mayor, Reeve,
Town of Rainbow Lake, Municipal District of Mackenzie,
P.O. Box 149, P.Q. Box 640,
RAINBOW LAKE, Alberta, FORT VERMILION, Alberta,
TOH 2Y0O TOH 1NO
¥ ""'h
Mike Mihaly, 1D E@p@[ﬁ [m
Mayor, ﬁj

Town of High Level,
9813 - 102 Street, ‘ OEC 112003
HIGH LEVEL, Alberta, MUNICIPAL DISTRICT
ToH 120 OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
MDD - FORT VERMILICON

Dear Reeve Neufeld, Mayor Kurash and Mayor Mihaly:

RE: Water Front Cottage Development Proposal

The purpose of this letter is to follow-up on the recent letter you would have received from
the Honourabie Mike Cardinal, Minister of Sustainable Resource Development, in response to your
comments regarding water front cottage development. In his letter to you, Minister Cardinal made
reference 1o the possible role that the Northern Alberta Development Council could play with the
advancement of your proposal.

It was suggested that a detailed proposal be prepared regarding water front cottage
development in the area covered by the Municipal District of Mackenzie and both Towns. The
proposal would provide a basis on which the three municipal councils and the Northern Alberta
Development Council could prepare a recommendation to the Minister of Sustainable Resource
Development.

The Northern Alberta Development Council would like to suggest a meeting to review this
proposal. Participants in the meeting could include yourselves, your Chief Administrative Officers
and representatives of the Council. The meeting would provide the Council with a chance to be
updated on the work completed to date, as well as look at what future actions could be considered.
The meeting could be held at a convenient time for all of you.

€2 Printed on recycled paper



Reeve Bill Neufeld,
Municipal District of Mackenzie,

Mayor Iris Kurash,
Town of Rainbow Lake,

Mayor Mike Mihaly,
Town of High Level,
Page Two,
December 9, 2003

The Northern Alberta Development Council looks forward to meeting with you to discuss
your proposal for water front cottage development. If you have any questions or if you require any
additional information regarding these matters, please do not hesitate to contact me.

In closing, please accept my best wishes to you, your families and colleagues for a Merry
Christmas and a Happy New Year!

Tom Haldwin,
ive Director,
NORAHERN ALBERTA DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

cc. Gary Friedel,
Chair, Northern Alberta Development Council,
MLA for Peace River

The Honourable Mike Cardinal,
Minister of Sustainable Resource Development

T8/






MAYOR BILL SMITH 2nd FLOOR, CITY HALL

1 SIR WINSTON CHURGHILL SQUARE

CITY OF EDMONTON EDMONTON, ALBERTA, CANADA T5J 2A7
PHONE (780) 496-8100

FAX (780) 496-8292

EMAIL bill. smith@edmonton.ca

December 12, 2003

Reeve William Neufeld

Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
P.O. Box 640

Fort Vermilion AB TOH 1NO

Dear Reeve Neufeld:

As the Chair of the 60 member Northern Alberta Mayors” Caucus (NAMC), I would like w advise you
that at a recent meeting of the NAMC, a motion was passed which directed that Reeves representing
communities which are members of the Northern Alberta Mayors® Caucus, be invited to a joint meeting
of Mayors and Reeves in June 2004.

The Caucus suggested a joint meeting in the morning, followed by a golf game in the afternoon.
Therefore, what is being planned, is as follows:

Friday, June 18, 2004 (Joint meeting of NAMC and Reeves)
8:30 a.m. —~ 12:00 noon
Shaw Conference Centre, Edmonton

1:00 p.m. — 5:00 p.m.
Golf experience -- Northern Alberta Mayors and Reeves
Victoria Golf Course, Edmonton
{dinner and prize presentation to follow)

In late February 2004, I will forward you further details about the June 18" events . . . . but I wanted to
ensure that this is in your calendar for your long term scheduling. Attached for your information, is a list -
of communities which are members of the NAMC.

Best wishes for an enjoyable and safe holiday scason . . . see you in 2004!
Yours truly,
é ) /)".J’Z

Bill Smith, Chair
Northern Alberta Mayors’ Caucus

Attachment
c Northem Alberta Mayors® Caucus
\y fr Vi

CELEBRATING 100 YEARS
EDMONTON 2004



Mayor Al Wurfel

Town of Athabasca

4705 — 42 Avenue
Athabasca, AB T95 1B7
Phone: 675-2063 (office)
Fax: 675-4242

Mayor Brian Schulz

Town of Barrhead

Box 41869

B106 - 50 Street

Barrhead, AB T7N 1A2

Phone: 674-3301 (office)
674-2227 (daytime)

Fax: 674-5645

Mayor Ken Kobly

Town of Beaumont

5600 - 49 Street
Beaumont, AP T4X1A1
Phone; 929-8782 (office)
Fax: 029-6729

Mayor Leroy Durand

Town of Beaverlodae

Box 30

201 -10 Street
Beaverlodge, AB TOH OCO
Phone: 354-2201 (office)
Fax:  354-2207

Mayeor Ron Longtin

Village of Berwyn

Box 250

5006 - 51 Street

Berwyn, AB TOH OEO
Phone: 338-3922 (office)
Fax: 338-2224

Mayor Dave Latta

Town of Bon Accord

P.0. Box 100

5025 - 50 Avenue

Bon Accord, AB TOA OKO
Phone: 921-3550 (office)
Fax: 921-3585

Mayor Kathryn Kozak Wiebe
Town of Bonnyville

Bag 1006

4917 - 49 Avenue
Bonnyville, AB TSN 2J7
Phone: B26-3496 (office)
Fax: B26-45606

Mayor Don Faulkner

Town of Calmar

Box 750

4920 - 49 Street

Calmar, AB TOC OYO
Phone: 985-3604 (office)
Fax; 2p5-3039

Mayor Norm Mayer

City of Camrose

5204 - 50 Avenue

Camrose, AB T4Y 055

Phone; 672-4426 (office) 429-2041 (direct)
B672-4491 (business}

Fax: 672-2469

Mayor Hansa Thaleshvar
City of Cold Lake

5513 - 46 Avenue

Cold Lake, AB TOM 1A1
Phone: 594-4494 (office)
Fax:  594-3480

Mayor Bob MsDonald
Town of Pevon

#1 Columbia Avenue West
Devon, AB TG 1A1
Phone: 9B7-8302 (office)
Fax: 287-4778

Mayor Moe Hamdon

Town of Drayton Valley

Box 6837

5120 - 51 Street

Drayton Yalley, AB T7A 1Al
Phone: 542-6327 (office)
Fax: 542-56753

Mayor Bill Smith

City of Edmenton

2nd Floor, City Hall

1 6ir Winston Churchill Square
Edmonton, AB T5) 2R7
Phone: 496-8100 (office)
Fax: 496-5282

Mayor Gary Mahon

Town of Edson

P.0. Box 6300

605 - B0 Street

Edson, AB T7E iT7
Phene: 723-4401 (office)
Fax: 723-7445

Updated Nov/03

Page1of 5




Mayor Fred Pewarchuk
Town of Lamont

Box 330

Lamont, AB TOB 2RO
Phone: 895-2010 (office)
Fax:  £95-2525

Mayor George Rogers

City of Leduc

1 Alexandra Park

Leduc, AB TOE 4C4

Phone: 980-7100 or 980-7177 (office)
Fax:  980-7127

Mayor Robert {Bob) Pelletier
Town of Legal

Box 380

Legal, AB TOG 1LO

Phone: 961-3773 (office)
Fax:  961-4133

Mayor Ken Baker

City of Lloydminster

4420 —~ 50 Avenue

Lloydminster, AR TOY OW2

Phone: 875-6184 (main)
871-8325 (direct)

Fax: 871-8346

Mayor Bill King

Town of Manning

Box 125

Town Office

Main Street & Main Avenue

Manning, AB TOH 2MO

Phone: £36-3606 (office)
£36-3014 (daytime)

Fax:  £326-3570

Mayor Lloyd Bertschi
Town of Morinville

10125- 100 Avenue
Morinville, AB TOG 1PO
Phone: 839-4361 (office)
Fax: 838-5633

Mayor Edward Stawnichy
Town of Mundare

Box 345

Mundare, AB TOB-ZHO
Phone: 764-3912 (office)
Fax: 764-3765

Mayor Lorne Mann

Town of Peace River

Box 6600

10008 - 100 Avenue

Peace Rlver, AB T&S 154

Phone: 624-2574 ext 124 (office)
624-4860 or 624-3666 (daytime)

Fax: 624-4135

Mayor Iris Kurash

Town of Rainbow Lake

Box 142 .
Rainbow Lake, AB TOH 2Y0
Phone: 856-3934 (office)
Fax: 956-5085

Mayor Gall Surkan

City of Red Deer

P.0. Box 5008

4914 - 45 Avenue

Red Deer, AB T4AN 3T3
Phone: 242-8155 (office)
Fax:  342-5365

Mayor Brian Brigden

Town of Redwater

Box 397

Redwater, AB TOA 2WO

Phone: 942-3519 (office)
923-2699 (daytime)

Fax;  942-4321

Mayor Dwayne Krefting
Village of Rycroft

Box 360

4703 - 51 Street

Rycroft, AB TOH 3A0
Phone: 765-3652 {office)
Fax: 765-2002

Updated Nov/O3

Page 3 of 5




Mayor Norman Adolphson

Town of Yalleyview

Box 270

4802 - 50 Street

Yalleyview, AB TOH 3NO

Phone: 524-3667 or 524-5150 (office)
Fax:  524-2727

Mayor David Kucherawy
Town of Yegreville

P.0. Box 640

4929 - 50 Street
Yegreville, AB TOSC1R7
Phone: 632-2606 (office)
Fax:  6€32-3088

Mayor Judy Woyewitka

Town of Yermilion

5021 - 49 Avenue

Yermilion, AB TOX 1X1

Phone: 853-5358 (office)
853-8427 (daytime)

Fax:  B53-6631

Mayor Carol Trider
Yillage of Yilna

Box 10

Yilna, AB TOA 3LO
Phone; €36-3620
Fax: - ©36-3620

Mayor Norm Coleman
Town of Wainwright

1016 - 2 Street
Wainwright, AB TOB 4P0
Phone: £42-3381 (office)
Fax: £42-2698

Mayor Shirley Morie

Town of Westlock

10003 - 106 Street

Weetlock, AB T7P 2K3

FPhone: 349-4444 (office) 428-1025 (direct)
Fax:  349-4436

Mayor Don Montgomery
City of Wetaskiwin

4904 - 51 Street
Wetaskiwin, AB TOA 2E9
Phone: 352-3344 (office)
Fax:  352-0930

Mayor Williard Strebchuk
Town of Whitecourt

P.0. Box 502

5004 - 562 Avenue
Whitecourt, AB TOE 2LO
Phone: T78-2273 (office)}
Fax: T78-4166

Mayor Bernie Hornby
Town of Fox Creek

P.O. Box 149

Fox Creek, AB TOH 1FO
Phone: 622-3896 (office)
Fax: ©22-4247

Mayor Wayne McEachern

Town of Mayerthorpe

P.0. Box 420

Mayerthorpe, AB TOE INO

Phone: 786-2416 (office)
648-6256 (daytime)

Faxx 786-4590

Updated Nov/O3

Page 5 of 5







ALBERTA ASSOCIATION of MUNICIPAL DISTRICTS & COUNTIES

4504 - 107 STREET « EDMONTON, ALBERTA T6E SA ;
GERALD RHODES}

. §9/5 FAX: (780} 437-5993

www.aamdc.com

DEC 1 12003

December 8, 2003 MUMICIPAL DISTRICT
OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
- M. FO'RT VERMIION

To All Member Councils:

Fall 2003 Convgntion Evaluation

AAMD&C appreciates member comments and suggestions about all aspects of
the Fall 2003 Convention. Your comments will advise us on what we did right
and what we could do better and your suggestions will assist us to better meet
the needs of convention delegates for future conventions.

~ Please take a moment to complete the Fall Convention Evaluation at your next
Council Meeting. We request that only one evaluation form be submitted by
Council from each jurisdiction. Please return the completed document by e-
mail to darla@aamdc.com or mail to the AAMD&C office at 4504 - 101 Street
Edmonton, Alberta, T6E 5G9 prlor to Wednesday, January 7, 2004

We W111 be makmg a draw from all the evaluat1ons submitted and the lucky
member will receive “free” registration fees for Council and the CAO for the
AAMD&C Sprmg 2004 Convention.

forward fo your responses and thank you for your valuable feedback!

P.S.  Separate from this evaluation of the completed Fall 2003 Convention, we will be
forwarding a “Future Convention Planning Survey” to get input from you for
planning future conventions. Please expect this survey in the New Year.



FALL 2003 CONVENTION EVALUATION

- NOVEMBER 17-20, 2003
COAST TERRACE INN/DELTA EDMONTON SOUTH

JURISDICTION:
PLEASE CHECK THE APPROPRIATE RESPONSE
CONVENTION 1. Poor 2. Fair 3.Good 4. Excellent
Overall, how would you rate the Convention? ] ] ] ]
Comments:
CONVENTION FACILITIES 1. Poor 2. Fair 3.Good 4. Excellent
How would you rate the Coast Terrace Inn ] ] Il ]
as the main convention facility?
How would you rate the Delta Edmonton South _
as the supporting convention facility? ] L] L] L]
Do you feel we have outgrown the current locations
where we host your conventions (Coast/Delta)? Yes ] No ]

Comments:

Page1l




HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS 1. Poor 2. Fair 3.Good 4. Excellent

Coast Terrace Inn
Delta Edmonton South

Greenwood Inn

Holiday Inn — The Palace

O 0000
OO0ooQog
00000
OO0o0Q0O™

Travelodge Edmonton South

Comments:

CONVENTION REGISTRATION DESK 1. Poor 2. Fair 3.Good 4. Excellent

Overall, how would you rate the process and/or service? I:l D D D
Comments: .

PUBLICATIONS ' 1. Poor 2. Fair 3. Good 4. Excellent

How would you rate the format and style : [] Nl Nl ]

of the Convention Handbook? ' '

How would you rate the format and style [] [] [] []

of the Convention Annual Report? _

"How would you rate the Resolutions Report Card? ] ] ] ]
Comments:

PAGE2



PLENARY SESSION

Ballroom Layout — Assigned Table Seating

by jurisdiction (reverse order of Hotel Rotation)

Opening Ceremonies

Annual Business Meeting (i.e. Reports, Financial)

1. Poor

U

[
[

O

[
[

[

[
[

2. Fair 3. Good 4. Excellent
O
[]
]

Comments:

WORKSHOPS

Rural Municipalities and the New Ag Economy

The Municipal Infrastructure Deficit

Municipalities and Customer Choice in Electricity

1. Poor

[
L]

[

L

L
[
[

2. Fair 3. Good 4. Excellent

[ L]
L

O

Comments:

SPEAKERS/PRESENTERS

Keynote Speaker — Charlie Farquharson
Canada West Foundation

Municipal Excellence Program

Policing énd Crime Prevention

Alberta Rura] Utilities Associatic;n

Alberta Environmental Farm Plan

1. Poor

0

O 0O O Od o

OO000OO

O

[

O 000 o

0030 0O

2. Fair 3. Good 4. Excellent

0

PAGE 3




Comments:

MINISTERIAL FORUM 1. Poor 2. Fair 3.Good 4. Excellent

How would you rate the format for this session? [] ] ] ]

How would you rate your opportunity to participate? ] [] ] ]
Comments:

RESOLUTION SESSIONS : 1. Poor 2. Fair 3. Good 4. Excellent

QOverall, how would you rate these sessions? D |:| D D
Comments:

MEALS/SOCIAL EVENTS 1. Poor 2. Fair 3. Good 4.Excellent

Overall, how would you rate the function and/or food?

Monday Welcome Reception
‘ Sponsor: Aquila Networks Canada

Tuesday Buffet Breakfast
: - Sponsor. Aon Reed Stenhouse

Tuesday Beef on a Bun Luncheon
Sponsor: Rural Committee of CEA

Tuesday “Mardi Gras” Hospitality Evening
Sponsor: Finning

I T R I R I

O o o o

O O o O

o o o o

PAGE 4




MEA:LS/SOCIAL EVENTS (CONT’D.) 1. Poor 2. Fair 3.Good 4. Excellent

Wednesday  Buffet Breakfast ] ] ] ]
Sponsor: Brownlee Fryett

Wednesday Buffet Luncheon

Wednesday  Association Social Evening
o Comedian: Bob Angeli
¢ Band: The Headliners

How would you rate the new seating assignment process
-for the Social (reverse order of hotel rotation)?

Thursday Buffet Breakfast

00 00000
00 00000
00 0DO00O00
00 ooooo

Thursday Meet Members of Cabinet and
MILAs Luncheon
Sponsor: Alberta Municipal Affairs

Comments:

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS ABOUT FALL 2003 CONVENTION

PAGE 5

























































NOI'fIleI'Il Box 22195 - Grande Prairie, AB T8V 6X1
)lposur sz Fax 760-402-8049

@EEWE 3 nec@worthy.ca
TOUR/ISM CONFERENCE :'
December 17, 2003 an 0 2200
MUNICI AR RICT
OF MACKENZIENO. 23
Dear Northern Tourism Stakeholder: LMD, - FoRT N%IUQE ]

As Co-Chairs, we invite you to be a part of the 2004 Northern Exposure Conference in Grande Prairie at the
Quality Hotel and Conference Centre on February 25-27, 2004,

Our Planning Team has worked diligently researching topics for sessions and programs that apply specifically
to and have been asked for by tourism stakeholders from across Northern Alberta. Under the theme of
“Learn + Partner = Opportunity”, we have secured great speakers from across western Canada to.present the

latest and most innovative ideas available on the tourism scene today all in a fun, informal, a
manner,

Sessions include these and many more interesting topics: partnering/packaging, working with
tour operators, e-marketing, working with municipalities, and a keynote presentation on how t u.n
in with today’s “leisure shift”. In addition to the sessions, special activities will ensure that everyone leaves’--
knowing that they’ve learmned something, met new people/potential partners, and have had some fun while
they’re at it.

Early bird registration is $175 (before Jan. 31/04) and the conference rate at the Quality Hotel & Conference
Centre will be $84/night (plus taxes). Register today by downloading the form from
www.industry.travelalberta.com.

While in Grande Prairie, we encourage you to explore the sites, restaurants, and shopping experiences of this
great Northern Alberta city. Make a point to stop in at the Grande Prairie Regional Tourism Association’s
visitor information centre at Centre 2000 and ask their staff to help you plan an evening or to extend your stay
over the following weekend.

Don’t forget that Northern Exposure will be offered in conjunction with the Grande Prairie Travel &
Leisure Show (Feb. 27-29)! Special combination registration rates are available for those who want to be a
part of both events. Book early as there is a limited quantity of show booths.

Please do not hesitate to call on either of us or a member of the Planning Team for more information.

Sincerely,

Brad Bishop Blain Sepos

Conference Co-Chair ‘ Conference Co-Chair

Representing Northern Alberta Development Council Representing Travel Alberta North (TDR)

s

Blaln Sep s '3 Brad Bishop X Shannon McVagh
ol Alb TR Co-Chair, NADC " Event Manager; Worthy Events
780-624-6535 4 780-831-6877

oD




MNorthern
Exposure

"'To UR/SM CONFERENCE

February 25

Leanmng ana nefworking gea/'ed Jfor the Northerm Tourism operator;
the comlference hosts a variely of fun and inferactive seminar
SESSIONS Lroviding new knowledae ana opooriumiies.




/ Northern
Exposure

TOURISM CONFERENCE

?Paﬁ@ﬁn&%bama Packaééﬁ@
Hetaining Employees
Agri Tourism

How to deal with tourism
media

LIS

Selling your product to

The Leisure Shift: From Free Time to Seamless Living. Eaur op orators

The winds of change are blowing us towards a new way of
living. The traditional structure of work/maintenance/leisure
which much of our product delivery is based upon is being
challenged by a move towards seamless lifestyles. This shift,
which Joe will present in practical, concrete terms is already
upon us in many facets of life and knocking on the door of
leisure delivery. This session is sure to challenge and
motivate you to consider the many opportunities for the
- future.

Customer Service

PACKAGING RPANEL

B A A R BT IR | INDIIUSTRIAL TOURISM

TR Helen Daymond
Daniel Cayer, Manager, e-Strategies "Experience the Energy”
E-Marketing on the Web - Maximizing Results One of Fort McMurray Tourism's success stories.

surrounds our region's largest employers,
In this Web marketing seminar you will learn how to  Syncrude Canada and Suncor Energy. The oil
maximize the effectiveness of your tourism Web site  sands bus tours - tagged the "Experience the
by examining the latest trends and how to better Energy" tour, have become an extremely
position your site through proven e-marketing successful and noteworthy initiative within
strategies and tactics. Topics include current online  Alberta's tourism industry. This exciting tour
travel research and trends, integrating e-marketing  program involves FMT initiating and managing a
into your marketing mix, and case studies/examples  partnership between traditional hospitality and
imon e-marketing initiatives/tools that can tourism attractions and non-traditional industrial
ffic to your site and positively impact your giants to provide a tourism package product that
ine. attracts over 5,000 visitors each year.




Schedule

Wednesday, February 25th
10:00 am - 1:00 pm

Registration and Check-In.
1:00 pm - 1:30 pm

Welcome & Opening Remarks.
1:30 pm - 4:40 pm

Afternoon Sessions.
6:00 pm

Dinner

~ Joe Pavelka "Leisure in Tourism"

Thursday, February 26th
9:00 am - 12:00 pm

Morning Sessions.
12:00 pm-1:15 pm

Lunch & Presentation.
1:15 pm-4:15 pm

Afternoon Sessions.
6:00 pm

Dine Around.
Friday, February 27th
8:00 am - 9:00 am

Breakfast.
9:00 am-12:00 pm

Morning Sessions.
12:00 pm-1:15 pm

Lunch & Closing Remarks.

* Tourism Opportunity:

.. Aisceven e Peacel

Saturday, February 28th, 2004, 10 am to 6 pm

Sunday, February 29th, 2004, 11 am to 4 pm
FW: :
e Guls EVM & Grande Prairie Tours

& Golf Corner ® Live Entertainment
@& Museum interactive Corner @& Fashion Show







WINTERFEST 2004

February 20 & 21, 2004
High Level, Alberta

Town of High Level . _ — .
Community Services D) @@ WE
Box 208 : _ g\iw _ Ul
: MUNICIPAL DISTRICT
December 5, 2003 OFL:“:;CK!E‘NZ{E NC. 23
§.D. - FORT VERMILION
To Whom It May Concern: '

The 2004 WINTERFEST planning committee is excited to extend this
invitation to your organization for participation in the WINTERFEST 2004
Community Challenge! The Challenge begins Friday evening, February 20", 2004
and wraps up Saturday night, February 21*, 2004. The purpose of the Community
Challenge is to help develop a sense of community, promote healthy and active
lifestyles, help combat the “Winter Blah’s”, and have a whole lot of FUN!

We are encouraging organizations of all sizes to participate and build
alliances with other organizations or draw upon family and friends to get enough
team members. We are also soliciting teams from the general public and would
like teams to challenge other businesses, organizations, groups, friends, and family
to enter as well!

Please find the Challenge details enclosed, as well as an itinerary of all
WINTERFEST activities, and a sponsorship package if you are interested in
supporting WINTERFEST with supplies, money or volunteer time! Our
sponsorship package includes various levels and benefits of sponsorship. If your
organization is interested in sponsoring you may be eligible for a free Community
Challenge registration! Please contact Carrie Brown at 926-2263 with any
questions or comments or attend our information and registration night on
Thursday, January 8%/04 at 7 PM in the Lecture Theatre at High Level Public
School. We look forward to your involvement in this year’s Challengel

Sincerely,

WIKTERFEST 2004 Planning Committee



SHEERHRHEERRREE R0
o q WINTERFEST 2004 e

i | HIGH LEVEL, ALBERTA 2,
o FEBRUARY 20th & 2lst %

Join us for a weekend of exciting community and family winter activities to celebrate High Level's
.%;En most prominent and lengthy season! We have amazing events planned for everyone of all ages!!

::»%:: e

,3;6 Friday, February 20%

% 7-9 PM - Opening Ceremonies (HLPS)
: Moose Call Competition

For more event information, to register
Jor the Community Challenge (teams of
10—15 people, Early Bird entry fee,
before January 16th, of 310/team member

0 5

%

Jor not-for-profit groups and 315/team
member for profit groups and after
January 16th—315/team member for not-
Jfor-profit groups and $20/team member
Jor profit groups), or to explore
sponsorship opportunities please contact
Carrie Brown at 926-2263.

Drum Dance

David Standing (ngh Level Idol)
Break Dancers

Florence MacDougall Bell Choir

W
C

i

O
&

W B B

3% Sarurday, February 21*

*
Commumly Chailenge

9 AM - Fire building and Tea boiling (Between Arena and Pool)

-%5%- $ 9:30 AM - Cross Country Ski Relay (High School Track Field) o258
o % 10 AM - Archery (Ball Diamond behind the Arena) o
o330 % 11 AM - Plank Walk (High School Track Field) S
& & 1PM — Canister Walk (High School Track Field) &%
. %, % 2 PM - Log Saw (High School Track Field) . %,
& & 2 PM - Axe Throw (High School Track Field) &
'%ié‘ & 3 PM - Human Dog Sled Races (High School Track Field) .;35{;.
& $ 4 PM - Tug-of-War (High School Track Field) 5%
i %. % 4:30 PM - Snow Sculpture Judging (Ball Diamond behind the Pool) i %.

Family and Children Events Qs
o550 & 10 AM -2 PM—Teddy Bear Clinic (Spirit of the North Schoal) e
0 0 & 10 AM ~ 3 PM—Health and Wellness Fair (High Level Public School) 0
o35 & 10 AM—Bannock Making (Between Arena and Pool) o2
S ‘# 1-3PM—Free Family Skating (Arena) o
o3ego % 10 AM - 12 PM—Family Fun Curling (Curling Rink) 2ok
o # 3-4 PM—Turkey Shoot (Curling Rink) C
o3 % Ongoing—Calf Roping and Snowball toss o280
SO & Ongoing—>Sleigh Rides &%
I%. l%.

Saturday Night (Our evening activities are all dry, non-smoking family events)

H.%E.“ & 7-8PM—Community Challenge Awards Ceremony (Arena Hall) ”.3%:'
% % §~10 PM—Talent Show (Arena Hall) %0
'%' % 10 PM -1 AM—Dance (Arena Hall)

e
%

oo

& & & & 8. & 1828 &

S0



. WINTERFEST

2004

February 20" & 21%

- HighLevel, A

berta

‘Sponsorship Opportunities



WIRTERFEST OBJECTIVE:

Develop a sense of community, promote healthy and active lifestyles, help combat the “Winter
Blahs”, and have a whole lot of FUN!

SPECIFIC SPONSORSHIP OPPORTUNITIES:

#®

# O RFPEFFEFE B

Prizes ~ we are soliciting organizations to donate any out-dated and dusty
promotional merchandise they cannot or do not use anymore but that is taking
up space in storagel

Turkeys ~ for the Turkey Shoot (the person who is able to curl their turkey closest to
the “button” gets to take their turkey home!l) We require 6 frozen turkeys.

Pancake Breakfast (juice, coffee, syrup, butter, pancake mix, & sausage)

3 - 12 foot long, 12 inch diameter logs for log saw competmon

Drum Dance

6 — 6 foot long 2x6s for plank walk

6 - empty 5 gallon pails for canister walk

50 feet of yellow nylon rope

General cash donations to contribute to any of the above, administrative costs,
advertising, and miscellaneous expenses.

Volunteer time prior to or on the day of the event

SPONSORSHIP LEVELS

Platinum Sponsor ($750.00 + )

HERRRR R

Free Community Challenge Team registration

Logo on all WINTERFEST advertising and event signage

Acknowledgment at Opening and Award Ceremonies

Certificate of Appreciaton

Thank you in the Echo

Banner up all weekend in a highly visible locauon

First option as a Platinum Sponsor and to enter the Community Challenge next year

Gold Sponsor ($500.00 - _$749.00)

Bx B RE H

Free Community Challenge Team registration ‘

Logo on all WINTERFEST advertising and event signage

Acknowledgment at Opening and Award Ceremonies

Certificate of Appreciation

Thank you in the Echo

First option as a Gold Sponsor and to enter the Community Challenge next year



Silver Sponsor ($300.00 - $495.00)

% Free Community Challenge Team registration

# Logoonall WINTERFEST advertising

# Acknowledgement at Opening and Award Ceremonies

% Thank you in the Echo

% First option as Silver Sponsor and to enter the Community Challenge next year

Bronze Sponsor ($150.00 - $299.00)

# Acknowledgement at Opening and Award Ceremonies
# Thank you in the Echo
% First option as Bronze Sponsor for next year's WINTERFEST

Friends of WINTERFEST (Less than $149.00)

% Thank you in the Echo
% Acknowledgment at the Awards Ceremonies






RECOMMENDED ACTION (by originator):

That the letter from Alberta Sustainable Resource Development regarding Sunday
Hunting be forwarded to the Upper Hay Recreational Hunting and Fishing Advisory
Committee for decision.

Review: Dept. C.A.Q.




Alberta

Sustainable Resource Development
Fish and Wildlife Division
NW Wildlife Management

Bag 900-26 : q
Peace River, AB T8S 1T4 ' iR AR
Phone: 780-624-6405 ; %E}mﬁ 5;@@}? !33 E;?E
Fax: 780-624-6455 SO @JE

Dave.Movles@gov.ab.ca

December 22, 2003 !

INICIRAL DISTRICT

MD of MacKenzie No. 23 .00, - FORT VERMILION
Box 640 -

Fort Vermilion, AB TOH 1NO

Attn: Mr. Harvey Prockiw

Dear Mr., Prockiw:

Alberta Fish and Wildlife Division manages deer, moose and elk populations throughout the
Peace Country of Alberta. Currently there are a number of measures designed to reduce negative
impacts of these species upon private landowners, including provision of fencing and financial
compensation programs. In addition over the last number of years, Alberta Fish and Wildlife
Division has introduced increasingly aggressive measures to increase recreational and
subsistence harvest of deer, moose and elk populations within the settled portions (White Zone)
of our region. We have increased the number and length of hunting seasons and have increased
numbers of hunting licences available, for both antlered and antlerless animals. In addition to
controlling big game populations, these hunting opportunities are highly valued by residents of
our region and many other Albertans, and strongly contribute to our local economies.

We continue to search for ways to enhance the effectiveness of hunting as a method to control
big game populations. One change to our current hunting regimes that we are considering would
be to allow Sunday hunting for big game animals in the White Zone throughout Alberta’s Peace
Country. The addition of Sunday hunting would give local hunters and others, including students
and people who work Monday to Friday, extra days to hunt. This would significantly increase
both hunting effort and, we believe, hunter success. Of course, each landowner will retain the
final decision as to whether he or she allows anyone to hunt on his or her land on Sundays.

In fact there are already some provisions for hunting on Sundays in Alberta. Currently Alberta
regulations allow for Sunday hunting on most of the provincial forested lands (Green Zone).
Also, the hunting of white geese on Sundays is currently permitted throughout the province
(White and Green Zones). In addition, black bear, coyote, wolf, fox, crow, magpie and raven
may all be hunted on private land on Sundays. Holders of the Resident Fur Management License
are currently permitted to trap furbearers on private lands in the White Zone on Sundays. Under
Federal regulations discharging of firearms is permitted on Sundays in Alberta.



Other provinces, such as B.C. and Manitoba, have had hunting on Sundays in agricultural areas
and have not reported problems.

We have presented the concept of hunting big game on Sundays in the White Zone at our eleven
public meetings that were held in November and December 2003 at communities throughout the
Peace Country. In all approximately 250 people attended these meetings. The general response
from people attending was positive and this includes people in the various meetings who
identified themselves as landowners.

I would appreciate your review of this proposed change and your comments. Please contact Dave
Hervieux in Grande Prairie (780-538-5618), Mark Heckbert in High Prairie (780-523-6517) or
Dave Moyles in Peace River (780-624-6465).

Yours truly,

Dave Moyles
Area Wildlife Biologist
Peace River Area






Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23
PO. Box 640, Fort Vermilion, AB. TOH 1INO
Phone: (780) 927-3718 Fax:(780) 927-4266

O

] l Municipal District of Mackenzie

December 8, 2003

The Honourable Gene Zwozdesky
Minister of Community Development
Legislature Building 10800 - 97 Avenue
Edmonton AB T5K 2B6

Dear Minister Zwozdesky:
Chinchaga Region

The Canadian Parks and Wilderness Society has been lobbying for

conservation initiatives in the Chinchaga Region; however, the Municipal O
District of Mackenzie is opposing the designation of the Chinchaga region as

an endangered forest.

The Municipal District of Mackenzie understands the need for balance
between industry and environment, however we feel a balance has been
achieved in our region. The Chinchaga region has been used for industry
for many years without endangering the region. The Municipal District of
Mackenzie believes that in designating this area as a protected area, the
ramifications will be severe for industry, essentially inhibiting economic

growth for our region.

The economy of northern municipalities depend on the resources within
their borders, and in removing profitable areas, the province will be stifling
the economy. We already have many natural areas set aside for
conservation in our area such as Wood Buffalo National Park, Hay-Zama
Park and Caribou Mountains Wildland Park, and feel that designating the
Chinchaga region as an additional protected area would only assist in
suppressing the economic development of Northern municipalities.



The Hon. G. Zwozdesky
Alberta Community Development
Page 2

Please consider this matter carefully, as it is a particularly sensitive issue for
both the environment and the economic growth of this region.

Yours truly,
Harvey Prockiw, B. Comm., CMA, CLGM
Chief Administrative Officer

Cc: Gary Friedel, MLA
M.D. of Clearhills





